Brandon Select Board Meeting
June 27, 2022
7:00 p.m.

The Brandon Select Board will meet Monday, June 27, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. at the
Brandon Town Hall located at 1 Conant Square expecting to consider the items
noted on this agenda. Agendas shall be posted on the community bulletin board
located at the Town Office at 49 Center Street and on the community bulletin board
located at the Junction Store & Deli at 2265 Forest Dale Road. The Select Board
reserves the right to add additional items, if necessary, at the beginning of the
meeting.

1)

2)

3)
4)
5)
6)

7)
8)
9)

Interested parties may also attend this meeting electronically:
e Video Conference via ZOOM: Meeting ID (253 279 4161)
o Conference call: Dial (929) 205 6099

Call to Order
a) Agenda Adoption

Approval of Minutes
a) Select Board Minutes — June 13, 2022
b) Special Select Board Meeting Minutes — June 20, 2022

Town Manager’s Report
Zoning Administrator's Report

Public Comment and Participation

Appointment
a) Energy Committee to Fill Anticipated Vacancy — Indefinite Term
Letter of Support for the Brandon Free Public Library Grant Request

West Seminary Park Stormwater Mitigation

Late Homestead Penalty

10) Internal Financial Controls Checklist for Municipalities

11) Assignment of Funds

12) Fiscal

a) Consider Purchase of FY 22/23 Diesel Fuel and Heating Fuel
b) Consider Purchase of FY 22/23 Propane
¢) Warrant - June 27, 2022 - $258,482.92

13) Executive Session

The appointment or employment or evaluation of a public officer or employee, to
include the Town Manager per 1 V.5.A. § 313(3)(a){3) to discuss Town Manager’s
contract

14) Adjournment



Brandon Select Board Meeting
June 13, 2022

NOTE: These are unapproved minutes, subject to amendment and/or approval at the
subsequent board meeting.

Board Members In Attendance: Seth Hopkins, Brian Coolidge, Tim Guiles, Tracy Wyman,
Mike Markowski

Others in Attendance: Dave Atherton, Neil Silins, Steve Cijka, Judy Bunde, Jack Schneider,
Kevin Cornet, David Roberts, Sophia Cornet, Jeff Stewart, Jim Emerson, Marielle Blais, Jason
Booth, Aaron Boynton, Addison Boynton

Other In Attendance Via Zoom: Richard Jamros, Mathew Clouser, Keith Whitcomb

1. Call to order

The meeting was called to order by Seth Hopkins, Chair at 7:02PM.

a) Agenda Adoption

Motion by Tracy Wyman/Brian Coolidge to adopt the agenda as amended. The motion passed
unanimously.

Add Item 5a - Energy Committee Funding Presentation
2. Approval of Minutes

a) Select Board Hearing Minutes — May 23, 2022
b) Select Board Meeting Minutes — May 23, 2022

Motion by Brian Coolidge/Tracy Wyman to approve the May 23, 2022 hearing and meeting
minutes. The motion passed unanimously,

3. Town Manager’s Report
Dave Atherton provided the following report:

. VTrans will be starting work on Route 7 this week. The project begins in the Town of
Pittsford on US Route 7, just north of the intersection with VT Route 3, and extends
northerly along US Route 7 to a point just south of the US Route 7 and Hawk View Road
intersection in the Town of Brandon. Work on this project will consist of milling the
pavement to a 1.5" depth, spot shimming and surface prepping, then paving with a 1.5" lify
of Type IVS wearing course pavement. Additionally, some guardrail work will be
performed to repair and replace damaged sections to bring full runs into compliance with

Brandon Select Board Minutes 1
June 13, 2022



the current standards. Shoulder berms that have built up will be removed to facilitate better
drainage from the road surface, and some ditching work may be performed to further aid in
drainage. The corridor will be evaluated for the installation of Centetline Rumble Strips
(CLRS). CLRS will be installed where the speed limit is 45 MPH or greater, the pavement
width is 14 feet in both directions, and the traffic volume exceeds 1500 vehicles per day.
The CLRS will be stopped at Town Highway intersections, and anywhere that a residence
falls within 100 feet of centerline. In these cases, the CLRS will be stopped and resumed
100 feet from either corner of the residence. Mr. Atherton noted this project will be going
through most of the summer and people may want to find an alternate route due to delays.

. The Annual inspection of our closed landfill was completed on May 27" by KAS.

- Mr. Atherton attended the VL.CT Regulating Cannabis webinar on May 24" and sent the
presentation slides to the Select Board on the 24™ for review.

- Mr. Atherton attended the annual Vermont Emergency Management Conference on May 26 at
the Lake Morey Resort and attended the following seminars: Case Studies for Flood Resilient,
Communities, Threat and Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment, VT ERAF: How to
Best Meet the Needs of Our Communities, National Weather Service Tropical Storm
Program Expands into Vermont this Summer... What Does That Mean for You?

- The Arnold District culvert bid opening took place on July 3™. The apparent winning
bidder was Poulin Landscaping at $245,280.00. The 3-sided precast concrete box culvert cost
is $78,655.00 which brings the total construction and installation cost to $323,935.00, which
is a little under what was anticipated.

. Mir. Atherton held a meeting on June 8" with Representative Jerome, Representative Shaw,
Pittsford Town Manager, and the Mosquito District to discuss the need for more larvicide
funding and the best way to make the request to the Dept. of Agriculture. Mr. Atherton
advised a leiter is being drafted by the Mosquito District that will be reviewed by
Representatives Jerome and Shaw prior to sending it to Anson Tebbetts.

. The property appraiser for VLCT was in Town on June 8™ to complete appraisals on all
of the Town’s buildings for insurance purposes.

Tim Guiles noted the electric car chargers have gone to cost. He tried them and was impressed
the cost is 19 cents/ kilowatt hour as typically there is usually a premium. He was surprised with
the add on charge of 75 cents/hour for parking and asked the Town Manager to look into whether
there is flexibility in the pricing scheme to either reduce or eliminate the parking fee, as the
Town does not charge for parking in any other municipal locations.

Judy Bunde, resident of 69 Park Street, reported she has had 5 inches of water in her basement
since spring and there are other homeowners on Park Street that are having a similar issue. This
spring the owner of 65 Park Street did some remedial work and is still having a problem.
Residents of 67 Park Street have had 5 inches consistently since spring and have to pump it
manually. On 71 Park Street, they did work in their basement and still had wetness this spring.
They notified the Town and it was determined it was a freshwater problem, not sewage. She did
not keep a log of the interactions, but Sam Glaser of 67 Park Street kept daily notes and they can

Branden Select Board Minutes 2
June 13, 2022



supply more information. Ray Counter of the Water Department reviewed the basements and
found no leaks or defects. He also brought in some other people to try to solve the problem.
There was testing of the stormwater and sewer system done in doing camera and die testing.
Engineers from Aldrich & Elliott reviewed the situation but there was never any follow-up with
written statements. They made good faith efforts over several weeks. Finally, three weeks ago
the basements started to dry out with spring and the thaw over. The homeowners affected would
like to see this be addressed during the summer season. One of the basements was dry for a
couple of days and after the rain, the basement filled up again. The Town stopped doing anything
and the engineer from Aldrich & Elliott does not think that the bioswales could be the problem.
The homeowners have not done anything different but the Park Street construction happened.
Ms. Bunde accepts the findings that the new structures are not the problem, but noted it s
reasonable that the Park Street construction is the event that changed the situation. She would
like the situation fixed and noted she is not looking to take money from the Town. She is
disappointed the Town stopped researching this situation and it is reasonable to ask the Town to
figure out what caused this, Seth Hopkins stated he has previously spoken to Ms. Bunde about
this situation. Dave Atherton reported the Town has exhausted all that can be done and noted that
Mr. Glaser had indicated he was going to hire an outside engineering firm. He stated if it were
the Town’s problem, they would fix it. The back and side yards are wet, but the area in front of
the houses is not. Mr. Atherton noted there has also been flooding in other areas that the Town
has not seen before. The base for Park Street is sand and there is very good drainage there. Jason
Booth of Aldrich & Elliott reporied bioswales were put in for drainage and this area has been
reviewed and a camera was used on the street to assure that everything is working like it should.
Mr. Hopkins advised the Town removed three large mature trees and in doing some research, he
noted a mature maple could absorb several thousand gallons of water in a season and perhaps
that is what is happening in that area, Ms. Bunde did not think the trees would have resolved this
problem when Sam Glaser’s basement flooded again after the recent rain. Mr., Booth advised he
has been in both Sam’s and Judy’s basements and it appears it is coming up from under neath the
floor and appears to be coming more from the High Strect side. Mr. Atherton stated there were
thoughts that an old storm drain from High Street was the cause of the problem, but it was found
to have no interconnections. As far as the roadwork, the center of the road has been lowered as
there was a high crown that sloped steep to the sides. Mr. Atherton did not think the road is the
issue due to it being lower than before. They also reviewed the predesign in the Stormwater
Management Plan that identified this as a priority project and there were some percolation test
pits done and the perc rates were very good as it is all sand. The services are deep in Park Street,
particularly the sewer line that goes up the southern side of the street and had consistent sand.
There was no evidence of the groundwater table being raised in this area from the piping or
bioswale work. The only other thing is a possible water leak and Ray Counter did significant
checks in the area. It was noted there is no evidence of floor drains in the basements and
everything found piping-wise from the south or north side of the road was reconnected so there
was 1o mystery. Mr. Atherton was under the impression that Sam Glaser was bringing someone
in to do research. Ms. Bunde advised Mr. Glaser has talked to three different engineering
companies and there may be someone that can come in, but any remediation plan could be
ineffective if it is not known where the problem is. Mr. Glaser wants to have an engineer take a
look at this but is concerned about the costs. Ms. Bunde does not care to know why it is
happened; she just wants her basement fixed. Mr, Atherton noted he would be fine with the
Town hiring someone if it was the Town’s issue but noted the front yards are dry and there are a

Brandon Select Board Minutes 3
June 13, 2022



lot of impervious surfaces in the back yards. Mr. Atherton noted that there is not a bulkhead on
Ms. Bunde’s home and there have been heavy rains and issues in other areas where there were
not problems before, The Town has exhausted every avenue. Mr. Atherton stated the only
engineers he is familiar with are Otter Creek Engineering, Dubois & King, and Aldrich & Elliott.
Tracy Wyman suggested Lincoln Applied Geology. Ms. Bunde stated the homeowners need
some support from the Town as they are taxpayers. Mr. Atherton stated the Town has inspected
the area and did leak detection and the water is not coming from Park Street. The backyards are
wet and those are not the Town’s responsibility, Tracy Wyman noted he had a similar problem in
his basement and he had to figure out where the water was coming and was able to correct his
problem. Mr. Atherton stated the Town did not leave the homeowners stranded as they
researched and did all the testing they could and would have corrected the issue if it was found.
Seth Hopkins suggested it might be beneficial for either Ms. Bunde or Mr. Glaser to arrange for
an outside firm to review the area. Mr. Atherton suggested there is Dufresne Group out of St.
Johnsbury or MSK out of Bennington as other possibilities. Mr, Atherton stated the weather has
extremely changed with more rain and stronger storms in a shorter amount of time. Ms. Bunde
will-contact Mr. Atherton to obtain the names of the engineering companies to contact.

Kevin Cornet expressed concern about the curb near the Baptist Church that runs towards
Sudbury as there have been numerous people that have gotten flat tires by running over it. Mr.
Cornet asked if the Town could see if there could be something done to identify it. He stated
there have been at least five people that have had tire blow outs. He has spoken to the Town
Manager about possibly moving it or some other alternative. Seth Hopkins stated this is a recent
placement of a curb from a recent project and was done for pedestrian safety. Dave Atherton
stated the road is wide at the intersection and then narrows down. He reviewed it and spoke with
Mrs. Bove who lives in the area about this situation. She had indicated there was no protective
curb previously and cars travel fast down Champlain Street. It was noted the curb is there for a
reason. The fog line could be extended and a delineator post added as there is currently no fog
line on Champlain Street until the Town garage, Mike Markowski stated this section is over 10
feet wide that is more than enough for a typical car. Mr. Cornet noted people are still hitting it.
Mr. Atherton reiterated the Town can extend the fog line and put a reflective delineator post in
that location.

The Select Board meeting was recessed at 7:54PM to reconvene as the Board of Sewer
Commissioners.

The Select Board reconvened at §:08PM.
4. Public Comments and l’ﬁrticipation

David Roberts, President of the Brandon Library, was present to discuss the parking in front of
the library. He noted the

library is in support of the neighbors but want to be sure there is ample parking for the library
and noted they need every parking spot they can get. Dave Atherton advised this area has been
reviewed as the Town has received concerns from adjoining neighbors about the safety in
traveling out of their driveways. Mr. Atherton will be in contact with the neighbors again about
the situation. Seth Hopkins asked if the library staff could park further along Park Street instead

Branden Select Board Minutes 4
June 13, 2022



of the head-in parking spots to provide more library parking. Mr. Roberts advised there is usually
three staff people and they will be glad to work with the Town to figure this out. Tim Guiles
suggested if there were lines for parallel parking, it would be helpful for people. Mr. Roberts
stated they do parallel patk on the other side but they want to be sure the parking spaces are
maximized. Handicap parking spots require two spaces and the curb lowered. Mr. Atherton
advised if lines are painted, there may be spaces lost due to the size that is required for a parking
space. Mr. Atherton will be discussing this subject with the abutting neighbors to come up with a
solution for the parking, while providing them visibility from their driveways.

5. Champlain Street Curb Concern
This item was previously discussed during the Town Manager’s report.
5a. Energy Committee Funding Presentation

Jim Emerson, Chair of the Brandon Energy Committee, was present to request support from the
Select Board for their July 4 parade entry. He noted the Committee is tasked with helping the
Town reach its goals for reduction of greenhouse gas emissions and with educating and inspiring
the community to take action connected with these goals. Mr. Emerson advised the Committee
has information that is educational that they would like to include in the Brandon July 4" parade.
They expect to use the information in the July 4™ parade, at SolarFest gatherings, at the
Davenport event, and other events in the future. The Committee also wants to build a rapport
with the community and intends to enter a float in the parade that will include electric vehicles
and electric bikes. Mr. Emerson provided a sample of a tee shirt with the Energy Commitiee’s
logo that would be used by the Committee members and volunteers for the events, The parade is
about the future and they fee] that entry in it is important. The Committee requested the Select
Board authorize $600 for the purchase of banners, placards, and tee shirts for the upcoming
events. Seth Hopkins thanked Mr. Emerson for the spirit that they are putting into their work on
the Energy Committee. Mr. Hopkins stated there was $3200 placed in the next F/Y budget for
the Energy Committee. Dave Atherton did not think the items requested fit with the outline of
budget items for training and a survey and did not feel it was something that would come out of
the operating budget. Tim Guiles suggested this is a great expenditure of money to support the
Energy Committee and are reusable items and it is appropriate for the Committee to come to the
Board when they need funding. Tracy Wyman suggested it should be a fundraising item. Mr.
Hopkins advised the Board can’t approve spending money on an adhoc type of basis but approve
spending money in a comprehensive-type basis that is inclusive of the public. There are
occasional requests of worthy projects but it is just not good practice to take items one at a time
and he cannot support spending money that is not part of the process. Mr. Hopkins’ recollection
was the funds allocated for next year’s budget were dedicated to a town-wide survey and this is a
sponsorship opportunity and not something he could support from an operating point of view.
Jim Emerson noted this would be for promotional materials and asked if the money could be
expended after July 1*'. Mr. Hopkins advised the Select Board would not consider a $600
expenditure as it would be under the purview of the Town Manager to determine if it is an
appropriate expenditure. Mr. Hopkins noted in this form of government, it is the Town
Manager’s decision and he would not push the Town Manager toward spending an amount of
money. Mr, Guiles thought that committees that have a budget, while appropriate that the Town

Brandon Select Beard Minutes 5
June 13, 2022



Manager should review expenditures, should have latitude for spending, Dave Atherton reported
the money is not available until July 1% and noted he advised Mr, Emerson if they could have the
items billed after July 1, the money would be available. Mr. Guiles stated when we have
committees, we should give modest funding and allow them to spend as they see fit. Mr.
Emerson stated there were three items for the budget that included a survey, energy conservation
displays and promotional displays. Mr, Atherton stated the promotional materials in the budget
request were more specific. Mike Markowski thought a fund-raising effort might be more
appropriate. Mr. Hopkins suggested solar-type companies may be a better option for obtaining
funding. He stated the Board has to be careful with what funding is spent on. Mr. Hopkins read
from the 9" Article of the Constitution. Mr. Hopkins did not find that he could support the
sentiment that the buying of tee shirts is going to be of service. He noted this is a management
decision, not a board decision and expressed concern that previous work of the Energy
Committee has not shown respect for the budget process. Mr. Hopkins advised there is no Board
action required.

6. Consider Reduction in Number of Seats on the Planning Commission

Seth Hopkins advised this topic is for the Select Board to consider due to the number of people
completing their terms with only 3 people remaining on the Commission and leaving 3
vacancies. Mr. Atherton stated there cannot currently be a quorum and the Planning Commission
can have a minimum of 3 seats, but no more than 9,

Motion by Mike Markowski/Tracy Wyman to reduce the Planning Commission seats to five
people. The motion passed unanimously.

7. Appointments

a) Development Review Board - 2 seats (3-year terms ending June 30, 2025) — John Peterson
and Jack Schneider

b) Development Review Board Alternate - 2 seats (3-pear terms ending June 30, 2025) -
Vacancy

¢) Planning Commission - 3 seats (3-year terms ending June 30, 2025) — Jack Schneider, 1
Vacancy

d) Planning Commission - 1 seat (remainder of term ending June 30, 2023) - Vacancy

¢) Planning Commission - 1 seat (remainder of term ending June 30, 2024) - Vacancy

J) Revolving Loan Fund Conunittee - 2 seats (3-year term ending June 30, 2025) — Stephanie
Jerome and Karen Lynch

g) Revolving Loan Fund Committee Alternate — I seat - Vacancy

8) Rutland Region Transportation Council (1-year term ending June 30, 2023) — David
Atherton

h) Rutland Region Transportation Council Alternate (1-year term ending June 30, 2023) -
Vacancy

i) Rutland Regional Planning Commission (1-pear term ending June 30, 2023) — Jack
Schneider

J) Rutland Regional Planning Commission Alternate (1-year term ending June 30, 2023) -
Vacancy

Brandon Select Board Minutes )
June 13, 2022



Motion by Brian Coolidge/Mike Markowski to approve the appointments as presented. The
motion passed unanimously.

Dave Atherton will advertise the list of vacancies to see if the Town can fill some of the seats.
Seth Hopkins read the following Martin Luther King, Ir. quote: “Volunteers do not necessarily
have the time; they just have the heart.” Mr. Hopkins thanked all the people that have stepped up
to fill the commission spots and encouraged anyone interested in one of the vacant seats to
contact the Town Manager,

8. Adopt Rules of Procedure for Select Board Vicious Dog/Wolf-Hybrid Hearings

Seth Hopkins reported there was a vicious dog hearing held and the Select Board used the
VLCT’s procedures for the hearing and suggested this is an opportunity to formally adopt the
model policy from the VLCT.

Motion by Tim Guiles/Tracy Wyman to adopt the rules of procedure for Select Board Vicious
Dog/Wolf-Hybrid hearings as presented. The motion passed unanimously.

Mr. Hopkins advised a fair and reasonable solution was reached in a difficult situation, Dave

Atherton noted the Passion4Paws group was very responsive and it was a pleasure to work with
them.

9. Fiscal
a) Warrant — June 13, 2022 - $189,684.11

Motion by Brian Coolidge/Tracy Wyman to approve the June 13, 2022, warrant in the amount of
$189,684.11. The motion passed unanimously.

Seth Hopkins thanked all who attended the meeting.

The Select Board recessed at 8:46PM.

The Select Board reconvened at 8:52PM.

Motion by Mike Markowski/Tracy Wyman to enter into executive session at 8:53PM for the
appointment or employment or evaluation of a public officer or employee per 1 V.S.A.
313(3)(a)(3) to include the Town Manager. The motion passed unanimously.

10. Executive Session

The Town Manager left the meeting at 9:14PM and returned at 9:29PM.

Motion by Brian Coolidge/Tracy Wyman to come out of executive session at 9:40PM. The
motion passed unanimously.

Brandon Select Board Minutes 7
June 13, 2022



Motion by Brian Coolidge/Tracy Wyman to thank Wayne Rausenberger for his years of service
on the Otter Creek Watershed Insect Control District as the Select Board has decided to close his
term. The motion passed unanimously.

Motion by Mike Markowski/Tim Guiles that it is found that premature general public
knowledge of the current contract with the NEPBA will clearly place the Town at a substantial
disadvantage. The motion passed unanimously.

Motion by Mike Markowski/Tim Guiles to enter into executive session at 9:45PM to discuss the
current contract with NEPBA under the provisions of Title 1, Section 313(a)(1) of the Vermont
Statutes. The motion passed unanimously,

11. Executive Session

Motion by Tracy Wyman/Seth Hopkins to come out of executive session at 9:54PM. The
motion passed unanimously.

There were no actions required.
12. Adjournment

Motion by Tracy Wyman/Seth Hopkins to adjourn the Select Board meeting at 9:55PM. The
motion passed unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,

Charlene Bryant
Recording Secretary

Brandon Select Bcard Minutes 8
June 13, 2022



BRANDON SELECT BOARD SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
June 20, 2022

NOTE: These are unapproved minutes, subject to amendment and/or approval at the subsequent
board meeting.

In Attendance: Brian Coolidge, Tim Guiles, Seth Hopkins, and Tracy Wyman. (Absent: Michael
Markowski) ‘
There were no Zoom options for this meeting. No non-board members were present.

1} Call to Order

The Special Meeting of the Select Board was called to order by board chair Seth Hopkins
at 7:03PM.

On motion by Tracy Wyman, second by Tim Guiles, and unanimously voted, the agenda
was adopted as posted.

There was no public comment offered.
2) Executive Session
The Select Board enfered into Executive Session to discuss the appointment or
employment, or evaluation of a public officer or employee per 1 V.S.A. 313 (a)(3) at 7:05
PM on motion by Seth Hopkins, seconded by Tim Guiles, and unanimously voted.
The Select Board exited Executive Session at 8:03 PM.
No actions were required.
There was no public comment offered.

3} Adjournment

The Special Meeting of the Select Board adjourned at 8:04 PM on motion by Tim Guiles,
second by Tracy Wyman. Not debatable. Unanimously voted.

Respectfully submitted,

Brian Coolidge, clerk of the selectboard



Town Manager Report for June 26, 2022

» Held a pre-construction meeting for the Arnold District culvert replacement with TCE and Poulin
Landscaping on June 16", We are tentatively scheduled for construction to start in August. We
are planning on closing the road to through-traffic during construction from the Arnold/Hollow
Road intersection to the town line on the north end. | will be posting the road closure in the
Reporter and Addison Independent as well as sending letters out the residents on Arnold
District, RNESU, Leicester Town Offices and any others | can think of. The Highway Department
will also be taking advantage of the closure to replace cross culverts and perform ditch works in
anticipation of paving.

¥» Had a meeting to discuss further funding options for the WWTP upgrades with A&E and various
State entities. This conversation was similar to the one we had at the June 13 Board meeting. W

» Metwith Nanci at NRCS and Andreas with Watershed Consultants on moving forward with the
stormwater chamber project was identified in our stormwater masterplan. This is another fully
grant funded project through the NRCS. We are starting the design phase with Summer 2023 as
a tentative construction date,

» According to Matt Shirley’s Instagram followers, Brandon is the Most Underrated City in
Vermont. Mr. Shiriey is known for his “brutally honest” c¢harts and graphs on all things life
related. (see attached brutally honest chart)

Rec. News:

» Baseball Season is wrapping up with the majors championship game for the Randy Adams Youth
Baseball League being hosted at Neshobe tonight! Many thanks to our sponsors an coaches for an
amazing season.

» The Brandon Independence Day Celebration is on Saturday, June 2", Parade starts at 10 am with
activities,music food and fun all day long. Fireworks will cap off the day and all of these activities
are happing downtown! IF there are any folks that would like to volunteer, please contact Bill
Moore ASAP.

» Many thank to Joel & Darcy McLaren of the Brandon Inn for being great hosts of multiple events
and activities. The Brandon Rec swim lessons and the upcoming July 2™ family area and the
Brandon Area Chamber of Commerce Summer Concert series are the most recent examples of their
community service.

> luly 9% is the inaugural Davenport Electric Fest which is being held at Estabrook park on the 220™
birthday of Brandon’s greatest inventor, Thomas Davenport. A partnership with Green Mountain
Power, The Brandon Rec Department and Brandon Energy Committee, this.event will run from 11-6
and feature electric motor powered Busses, cars, motor bikes, bicycles, lawn equipment and
more. Food trucks, music, and games,






ZONING ADMINISTRATOR (ZA) Semi-Annual REPORT to BRANDON SELECT BOARD (SB) ~ as of June 27, 2022

ZONING PERMIT ACTIVITY:
For the Fiscal Year ending 6/30/2022 the ZA reviewed 64 zoning permit applications, an increase of 17% over
F.Y.2021. Several of these are waiting on VT permits before final Town approval may be issued.

Summary of permits reviewed

Project # Applications
Residential (attached to the residence): additions, decks, porches 17
Accessary (detached) Structures: garages, sheds, pools, fences 18

Single Family Residences (stick-built, modular, panel, log, mobile homes); new or replaced 8
Commercial or Municipal Projects, Changes of Use, 4
Home Occupations 1
Signs (business) 3
Demolitions {Note that a VT Asbestos Certification may also be required); Miscellaneous 3
Subdivisions, Boundary Line Adjustments 3
Barns, Agricultural Structures (to qualified farmers) 1
Denied, incomplete, or withdrawn Applications 0
Total #applications approved or pending approval: 64
Related Permit Activity Updates:
1. More notable permit approvals include:
a) Conversion of a 10 unit office building to three condominium dwelling units. Another multi-unit
property converted from rentals to condo ownerships.
b) Town approval {still in Act 250 review) for a three-building {totaling 11,000 sq. ft.} retail storage
rental facility on Rt. 7.
c) A five-lot subdivision for residential house construction in Forestdale. This is the largest subdivision
approved in the last five years.
d. Improvements to the Town waste-water treatment facility.

2. Potential Projects in Planning phase:

a) Purchase of 73 acres between Steinberg Rd. and Champlain St. to be developed into a 2.2 Mw solar
facility and permanent home for Solar Fest events. This is due to a unique real estate arrangement
with the solar developer, the not-for-profit organization, and many hours of time donated by
members of the Energy Committee.

b) The expansion of the Red Clover Brewery to the Brandon Industrial Park and new construction of a
4800 sq. ft. brewery with taproom. The current plan is to remain in their downtown location.

c) Real estate agents for Dollar General are still searching for a store site in or north of downtown.

APPROPRIATE MUNICIPAL PANEL ACTIVITY:
The DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD has held seven Public Hearings, as required by rules, to decide on
variance/waivers and conditional use permit applications. All were approved.

The PLANNING COMMISSION has been in transition this year, but continues efforts to improve sections of
the Brandon Land Use Ordinance (BLUQ)., Maost urgent is now having at least Four new members to replace
resigned (or soon to resign) positions held by Todd Nielsen, Liz Gregorek, Lowell Rasmussen, and William Mills.
The three remaining members will not satisfy a quorum for this seven member panel. If the Select Board votes
to approve a five member panel, and appoints the ZA as an alternate member to serve when needed for a

quorum, then meetings can continue un-interrupted for now. Any assistance by the 5.B. to find replacement
members would be appreciated.



Page 2 of 3 pages ZA Semi-Annual Report to Bandon Select Board 7/27/2022
SOME IMPORTANT ZONING ISSUES to ADDRESS:

1. CANNABIS: With the formation of a Town Cannabis Control Commission the Planning Commission will
not have to address this in the BLUO. Asthe current BLUO is silent on the Cannabis issue, | do not
believe the ZA has any authority to approve or deny requests for any activity regulated by Act 164, and
defer requests to the VT Cannabis Control Board. | have approved several cannabis related
applications that do involve BLUO jurisdiction (fencing for small cultivators, and a Home Occupation
for a processing lab).

2. FARM ANIMALS: The current BLUO language (Section 619) is not adequately detailed and
cumbersome to administer. | did have a discussion with the Town Manager on this, and submitted
draft “Keeping of Animals” language on this issue. He has proposed combining this with the Town’s
free-standing Animal Control Ordinance, ! support this concept and offer to assist the Manager and
Animal Control Officer in developing one effective Ordinance, which then can be remove Section 619
from the BLUO.

3. SIGNAGE: Currently there are three legally approved Ordinances which address this topic:

a) The BLUO (revised 2020), Section 407

b) The Central Business District Sidewalk Sign & Merchandfse Display Ordinance {approve 2014). This
ordinance offers rules for the CBD, but also requires compliance with BLUO Section 407.

¢} The Sign Policy — Maintenance & Procedure (adopted 2013). This Ordinance addresses municipal
{street) signs.

In addition, there are several sigh policy decisions issued by the SB over the past few years, which have

resulted in confusion. The Temporary Sign Banner Policy established during the Rt. 7 reconstruction

project is now expired. While this was approved by the SB due to extraordinary circumstances, | ask

the SB to appreciate that the existing approved Ordinances cannot be readily amended by a single

meeting discussion.

This brings me to a request from Neil Silins, who is requesting permission to continuously display a
sandwich board type sign at each end of Central Park from June through October, advertising the
Farmer’s Market. | attach a copy of my review to this request. | recommend this be addressed as a
regular (versus temporary} Permit which would be in effect year-to-year as long as the Farmer’s Market
organization exists. This permit will require the approval of the SB 1o place these signs on public land,
Note that this may result is other similar applications by merchants to place signs off their premises
and in Town roads and properties.

ZONING VIOLATIONS:

The Woods Road situation is the most egregious and repetitive issue | am encountering this period. The
absentee property owner (Pamela Mraz), who is the person receiving the violation, has been co-operative. The
tenant is the problem, having an established history of minimally cleaning up when on deadline for legal
action, and then going back to placing unregistered cars and parts on the property. | have already issued two
formal violations, and am going to issue a third for both past and new (operation an unpermitied business in
the garage) violations. While | am open to suggestions, the only way | have to change this pattern is to initiate
legal action and possibly negotiate for expenses and penalty with the Owner before going to a costly trial. This
may inspire her to a higher level of supervision of her tenant.



Page 3 of 3 pages ZA Semi-Annual Report to Bandon Select Board 7/27/2022

Fortunately, the most common zoning violation situation 1 have encountered recently is when a property is
being sold or re-financed. Lawyers will request a ZA review for zoning compliance, and this discovers a
number of unpermitted structures (decks, detached structures/shipping containers, swim pools, junk cars,
etc.) or uses (additional bedrooms, home businesses, etc.) As opposed to issuing a formal violation (which
would certainly delay or cancel a transaction), | usually achieve timely compliance by issuing a “corrective”
permit when possible. 1 could add a “doubling of the fee” to this, but as the fee schedule is minimal, | doubt
this would have any actual punitive impact or deter offenders. Sometimes a violation cannot be so easily
resolved {example: discovering a structure that encroaches prescribed setbacks).

As always, | am available to the Select Board during regular Town Office hours and by appointment.

Respectfully; W .
leffrey Biasuzzi, 2#\

802 247-3635 X202
Usual Office Hours: Tues.(8:15-4:00) & Wed.(8:15-12:30)



'] copy

Jeff Biasuzzi

AN L L APRION AR
From: Jeff Biasuzzi

Sent: Tuesday, June 21, 2022 3:28 PM

To: nsilinsvt@gmail.com

Cc: Jeff Biasuzzi

Subject: RE: Farmers Market signage proposal

Dear Mr. Silins,

In review of your request to display two "Farmer's Market" sandwich-board type Signs at opposite ends of Central Park,
continuously from June to end of October; there are several "overlapping” ordinances that may apply:

1. The following Zoning rules from Section 407 of the 2020 Brandon Land Use Ordinance (BLUO) apply:
a. Your sign design lacked dimension details, so | am uncertain if it conforms to Section 407(3)(b) which limits
sandwich/portable signs to be four ft. in height and 10 sq. ft. on each side of a two-sided sign.
| will assume any final sandwich sign{s} ordered will conform to these maximum prescribed dimensions.
b. Section 407(C)(4) limits sigh materials to be wood, metal, or natural materials. Wood is the only practical option
for a sandwich sign. As | have some authority to approve minor changes, and most sandwich signs
today are made of vynal/compaosite, | am willing to allow these materials.
¢. Section 407(B)(4)(d) allows the Select Board to approve temporary banners to announce public events. Section
407(B}(4)(f) allows temporary signs to be displayed for two special events annually, each for a
maximum of 21 days. This 42 day per year limit would not be long enough for the 120 day display penod you
requested.
d. . Section 407(C){3){6) allows for siting of a temporary {(movable) sign on public land in accordance with permission
granted by the Select Board.

2. The Central Business District (CBD} Sidewalk Sign & Merchandise Display Ordinance {approved 2/10/2014) allows:
a. Section VI Temporary & portable signs, provided the signs are placed adjacent to the curb, against the building, or
on green space; and comply with Section 407 of the BLUO and any other town, state, or federal
regulation. A minimum of six (6') ft. wide passage for pedestrian traffic shall be maintained at all times.
b. Off-premises signs are prohibited.

3. Sign Policy -Maintenance & Procedure (adopted 2/11/2013) - This Ordinance addresses permanent street signage and
not applicable to your rg,\(rquest.

The temporary Sign Banner policy that was in place during the Rt. 7. Reconstruction expired with the completion of that
project.

While there have been other sign memorandums approved during Select Board meetings, | have found only the Zoning,
CBD, and Sign Maintenance Policy to be officially adopted and recorded Ordinances. As the CBD Sidewalk Sign
Ordinance requires compliance with Zoning Section 407, 1 determine the BLUO to be the principal regulation in
addressing your request.

All this said, it is my opinion that BLUO Section 407 could allow a conforming sandwich sign for seasonal installation at
each end of Central Park, given Selecthoard permission and ZA approval of a Zoning permit.

! plan to attend the 6/27th Select Board Meeting. If you wish, i may be allowed to forward your sign request to the
Select Board that evening, Otherwise, the Board meets every two weeks and you can address the them personally.

Please call me tomorrow morning to discuss further? | will be in Town office until Noon.



You‘rs,
Jeffrey Biasuzzi, Brandon ZA

[

Usual Office Hours: Tues.(until 4:00) & Wed.{until 12:30)

-----QOriginal Message-----

From: Neil Silins <nsilinsvt@gmail.com>

Sent: Saturday, June 11, 2022 10:45 AM

To: Jeff Biasuzzi <zoning@townofbrandon.com> ‘

Cc: Wendy Cijka <cijkad@gmail.com>; Janis Reinke <info@froghollowvt.com>; Elizabeth Weeden
<eliz.weeden@gmail.com>; Jill Minotello <mushroomtreeclothing@gmail.com>; Vanessa Aprilliano
<vaprilliano@icloud.com:

Subject: Farmers Market signage proposal

Jeff,
Thanks for speaking about semi-permanent signage for the farmers market with me the other day. As | mentioned, I'd
like to be able to leave the

sign(s) up from one week before the market begins in June until it closes in October.

Attached are a (very) rough sketch of the sign construction and a photo of the sign layout we've been erecting every
Friday morning and removing after the market.

I've also included an aerial of Central Park, where the market is held with 2 sign locations indicated. We'd like to use
both locations but if the ordinance doesn't permit one would be okay.

Please advise your opinion, if you want additional information, etc.
Thanks,

Neil Silins



. ﬁvﬁwﬁﬁmﬁ TR
‘ m&.umﬁmm;mgﬂwwm .. 8 P

) .. o .,.”Wq,“wg&.”.

m..w i

suRBILTRAR

:\fazsﬁisyziil,i :

&g -
%
T

L.zeL.nouwﬁ

a1 ¥ Hueg mﬁ

Lo B e
- Eﬁarﬁmm i : wm«
- Hmm, mmucﬁwu;m wm@ .uumqumﬁ
1343) YGPUES o
PR
IWRINEISSY
S8BTy £,17

S Ray Dr
ﬁﬁ“ﬁﬁ | LY




QIHRY FHANTOIYS LISOLRYY




To: Dave Atherton, Town Manager
Select Board Members

From:  Elaine S. Smith
Re: Energy Committee Appointment

Date: June 23, 2022

Lollie Hoxie submitted the attached email expressing interest in becoming a member
of the Energy Committee. At present, there are seven Energy Committee members
(the Select Board approved expanding the Energy Committee to seven members at
the March 28" meeting). Per the Energy Committee Meeting minutes of June 6,
Lowell Rasmussen will be leaving the Committee after the August meeting. Perhaps
Ms. Hoxie can be appointed to fill the anticipated vacancy on the Energy Committee
beginning with their September meeting. She could still attend the July and August
meetings as an interested citizen.

Elaine S. Smith

Town of Brandon

49 Center Street

Brandon, VT 05733

(802) 247-3635 ext. 201
esmith@townofbrandon.com




David Atherton

M A M
From: Lollie Hoxie <hoxielodge@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 23, 2022 1:27 PM
To: David Atherton
Cc: sifimes@gmail.com
Subject: Re: Brandon Energy Committee

Hello Dave,

I'd like to submit my request to become a member of the Brandon Energy Committee.
I've met with Jim Emerson to learn more about what the group is working on and i think | could contribute.

My skill set comes from running my electronics design and manufacturing company for twenty five years. We had 30
employees in Connecticut and | was involved in all areas. Sales, marketing, personnel management and distribution. |
left the engineering to the engineers but we worked closely on new product development.

I'm most interested in the promotion of the group to our community. Of course | would work wherever the need is. |
believe the committee has agreat start and Jim's ideas are good ones. If 1 can help in any way please let me know.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,
Lollie Hoxie
109 Owls Way
Brandon

802 417 8959

On Sun, Jun 12, 2022, 3:01 PM Lollie Hoxie <hoxielodge @gmail.com> wrote:
Helio Dave,

I'd like to submit my request to become a member of the Brandon Energy Committee.

I've met with Jim Emerson to learn more about what the group is working on and | think | could contribute.

My skill set comes from running my electronics design and manufacturing company for twenty five years. We had 30
employees in Connecticut and | was involved in all areas. Sales, marketing, personnel management and distribution. |

left the engineering to the engineers but we worked closely on new product development.

I'm most interested in the promotion of the group to our community. Of course | would work wherever the need is. |
believe the committee has a great start and Jim's ideas are good ones. If | can help in any way please let me know.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,
Lollie Hoxie



TOWN OF BRANDON APPOINTED OFFICIALS

Date Term

Name Position Appointed Ending Date
Tim Kingston Animal Control Officer 03/22/2021 Indefinite
Doug Bailey Budget Committee 10/25/2021 2021
Janet Coolidge Budget Committee (03/08/2021 2021
Neil Silins Budget Committee 10/25/2021 2021
Barry Varian Budget Committee 03/08/2021 2021
Peter Werner Budget Commities 10/25/2021 2021
Chris Brickell Constable 02/24/2020 Indefinite
Robert Clark Development Review Board 06/28/2021 06/30/2024
Ralph FEthier Development Review Board 07/27/2020 06/30/2023
John Peterson Development Review Board 06/13/2022 06/30/2025
Jack Schneider Development Review Board 06/13/2022 06/30/2025
Samantha Stone Development Review Board 07/13/2020 06/30/2023
VACANT Development Review Board, Alt, 06/30/2023
VACANT Development Review Board, Alt. 06/30/2023
Thomas Kilpeck E-911 Coordinator 07/23/2018 Indefinite
David Atherton Emergency Management Director 01/09/2017 Indefinite

Emergency Services Representative to the
Tom Kilpeck Regional Emergency Management Committee 10/25/2021 Indefinite
Erin Ballantine Energy Committee 05/23/2022 Indefinite
Robert Black Energy Committee 09/13/2021 Indefinite
Jeffrey Cohen Energy Committee (03/28/2022 Indefinite
Jim Emerson Energy Committee 06/28/2021 Indefinite
Jeff Haylon Energy Committee 03/28/2022 Indefinite
Lowell Rasmussen Energy Committee 05/29/2018 Indefinite
Jack Schneider Energy Committee 05/29/2018 Indefinite
Todd Nielsen Fence Viewer 03/14/2022 March 2023
John Reynolds Fence Viewer 03/14/2022 March 2023
VACANT Fence Viewer March 2023
Linwood Bovey Fire Warden 06/24/2019 06/30/2024
Mike Markowski Deputy Fire Warden 06/24/2019 06/30/2024
James Leary Green-up Day Coordinator 03/14/2022 March 2023
Thomas Kilpeck Health Officer 06/28/2021 07/31/2024
David Atherton Deputy Health Officer 09/27/2021 09/30/2024
Trank Bump Historic Preservation Commigsion 06/25/2018 Indefinite
Bob Clark Historic Preservation Commission 12/09/2019 Indefinite
Roy Murdock Histori¢ Preservation Commission 03/14/2022 Indefinite
John Peterson Historic Preservation Commission 12/18/2018 Indefinite
Dennis Reisenweaver | Historic Preservation Commission 03/14/2022 Indefinite
Jeff Stewart Hisloric Preservation Commission 06/25/2018 Indefinite

Jne , . B




TOwN OF BRANDON APPOINTED OQFFICIALS

Date Term
Name Position Appointed Ending Date
Bob Kilpeck Inspector of Lumber, Shingles and Wood 03/14/2022 March 2023
Bill Moore Otter Creek Communications Union Dist. Rep. 03/14/2022 03/31/2023
VACANT Otter Creek Communications Union Dist. Rep. Alt. 03/31/2023
Richard Russ Otter Creek Watershed Insect Control District Rep. | 03/14/2022 March 2023
VACANT Otter Creek Watershed Insect Control District Rep. March 2023
VACANT Otter Creek Watershed Insect Control District Alt. March 2023
Ralph Ethier Planning Commission 06/28/2021 06/30/2024
Bob Foley Planning Commission 06/28/2021 06/30/2024
William Mills Planning Commission 07/13/2020 (06/30/2023
Lowell Rasmussen Planning Commission 06/24/2019 06/30/2022
Jack Schneider Planning Commission 06/13/2022 06/30/2025
Wendy Bizzarro Revolving Loan Fund Committee 07/13/2020 06/30/2023
Stephanie Jerome Revolving Loan Fund Committee 06/13/2022 06/30/2025
Karen Lynch Revolving Loan Fund Committee 06/13/2022 06/30/2025
Frank Spezzano Revolving Loan Fund Committes 06/28/2021 06/30/2024
Catherine Wall Revolving Loan Fund Committee 07/13/2020 06/30/2023
Tom Whittaker Revolving Loan Fund Committee 06/28/2021 06/30/2024
Jack Schneider Revolving Loan Fund Committee, Alt. 06/28/2021 06/30/2024
VACANT Revolving Loan Fund Committee, Alt. 06/30/2023
Gabe McGuigan Rutland County Solid Waste Dist. Rep. 03/14/2022 March 2023
VACANT Rutland County Solid Waste Dist. Rep. Alt March 2023
David Atherton Rutland Region Transportation Council Rep. 06/13/2022 06/30/2023
VACANT Rutland Region Transportation Council Rep. Alt. 06/30/2023
Jack Schneider Rutland Regional Planning Comimission Rep. 06/13/2022 06/30/2023
VACANT Rutland Regional Planming Commission Rep., Alt. 06/30/2023
Neil Siling Tree Warden 03/14/2022 March 2023
Lou Faivre Weigher of Coal 03/14/2022 March 2023
Olya Hopkins Weigher of Coal 03/14/2022 March 2023
Jeffrey M. Biasuzzi Zoning Administrator 07/12/2021 07/14/2024

: pa .




discussed with a banker about the middle group of people that have difficulty buying homes. She
suggested possibly taking some ARAP funds to assist people and noted it would keep the funds
in perpetuity and could provide funds for things like a solar installation, or other energy
programs. Tim Guiles stated the Town would get more than the CD rate and the townspeople
would have a lower interest rate than from a bank. Jim Emerson stated the Brandon Energy
Committee had discussed the development of a fund for energy and solar, and he would like to
see something like this fostered. Ms. Gage noted there is a Vermont Community Fund but
thought the Town could potentially start its own fund as there is a real need in this area. Seth
Hopkins stated this would need some study and suggested a working group of Select Board
members, Town Treasurer, Economic Development Officer and Town Manager to do research
and come back to the Select Board with a recommendation. Mr. Hopkins noted Mr. Atherton has
submitted a number of public works project that would require ARPA funding. Mike Markowski
and Tim Guiles volunteered to serve on the committee. Jeff Haylon suggested it would be good
to consider renters to promote home ownership.

Motion by Tracy Wyman/Brian Coolidge to appoint Mike Markowski and Tim Guiles to serve
on a working group with the Town Manager, Town Treasurer, and Economic Development
Officer to research the possibility of implementing a Brandon Community Fund. The motion
passed unanimously.

9. Consider Expansion of the Energy Committee

Seth Hopkins stated the current Energy Committee is Jim Emerson, Jack Schneider, Lowell
Rasmussen and Robert Black. In the past, the Energy Committee has had five members. Jim
Emerson stated they are in need of more people power. Mr. Hopkins noted there has been two
Brandon residents that have expressed interest in joining the Committee that would bring the
number of participants to 6. Mr. Emerson suggested expansion of the Energy Committee up to
10 people. Bill Moore stated there can be quorum issues with a large committee. Mr. Emerson
suggested expanding to 7 members at this point.

Motion by Tim Guiles/Tracy Wyman to expand the Energy Committee to 7 members. The
motion passed with one “No” vote — Brian Coolidge.

Brian Coolidge noted concern with the issue of a quorum.

10. Energy Committee Appointments (Terms are Indefinite)
- Jeffrey Cohen

- Jeff Haylon

Motion by Tim Guiles/Mike Markowski to appoint Jeffrey Cohen and Jeff Haylon to the Energy
Committee. The motion passed with one abstention — Brian Coolidge.

It was noted there is still one vacancy on the Planning Commission.
11. Fiseal

a) Warrant — March 28, 2022 - $68,032.84

Brandon Select Board Minutes 4
March 28, 2022



Brandon Energy Committee (BEC) Meeting - Draft
June 6, 2022

Committee Members Present: Jim Emerson, Jack Schneider, Lowell Rasmussen, Jeff Haylon, Robert Black, Erin
Ballantine

Others Present: Barbara Noyes Pulling, Tim Guiles

1. Call to order

The meeting was called to order at 4:32PM by Jim Emerson — Chair.
2. Inspirational Thoughts

The Committee members provided their thoughts on what the Committee can do to work together more effectively as a
group. Lowell Rasmussen noted energy costs are becoming more expensive and suggested the focus could be how to
help Brandon residents find cost-effective energy. Robert Black suggested creating an affordable energy future for
Brandon residents in helping citizens find solutions. Jeff Haylon stated the Committee needs to provide a service and
bring awareness to the community the Committee is present to help. Jack Schneider noted the Committee is working
cooperatively with the Select Board and assisting them with research in the area of energy. Mr. Schneider reported the
Select Board has appointment him as Brandon’s representative to the Rutland Regional Planning Commission (RRPC).
Mr. Emerson sees the mission of the Committee is to educate and inspire the community. He noted the Committee
members could work on individual goals but suggested there could be three working groups that would concentrate on
1} solar, 2} heat pumps and electric cars, and 3) an energy conservation program. Mr. Haylon suggested developing a
boiler plate version of what is being done in Brandon to be able to share with other communities.

3. Agenda Adeption

A motion was made by Jeff Haylon and seconded by Jack Schneider to approve the agenda as presented. The motion
passed unanimously.

4. Approval of Minutes

A motion was made by Jeff Haylon and seconded by Lowell Rasmussen to approve the minutes of the May 2, 2022,
BEC meeting. The motion passed unanimously.

5. Welcome Erin Ballantine

Jim Emerson welcomed Frin Ballantine as a new member of the BEC. Ms. Ballantine recently moved to Brandon and
works in the solar industry. She is interested in energy conservation and in helping the Town reach its energy goals.

Mr. Emerson advised that Lowell Rasmussen will be leaving the Committee after the August meeting. Mr. Emerson
thanked Mr. Rasmussen for his work on the Committee.

6. Survey Implementation Plans — Working Group Update

Jim Emerson advised Mr. Rasmussen had drafted an article for The Reporter and suggested Committee members
provide feedback of any changes, if needed. Mr, Rasmussen stated the mailing is going to be expensive and thought
the on-line survey is the most efficient and cost-effective way to do the survey. He suggested some hardcopy surveys
could be distributed at the July 4" parade and possibly some available at the Town Office. Barbara Noyes-Pulling
advised the RRPC could help with the on-line survey as of July 1 when their Survey Monkey account is available, If
hard copies are also done, those could be incorporated in the data. Mr. Emerson suggested there could possibly be a 3™
Class mailing done through The Reporter, similar to what the school district did, Robert Black reported Matt Closer
has been meeting with the Green Ways Committee and suggested meeting with him to discuss this option. Ms. Noyes-
Pulling stated a QR code could also be done. Jeff Haylon noted there had also been a suggestion to place the QR code

Brandon BEC Meeting
June 6, 2022



Elaine Smith

I AT M T L
From: Seth Michael Hopkins

Sent: Friday, June 24, 2022 5:09 AM

To: David Atherton; Elaine Smith

Subject: Fwd: the library support letter

Can this be added to the agenda and packet, please? Thank you.
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Tim Guiles <tguiles@townofbrandon.com>

Date: June 23, 2022 at 4:46:10 PM EDT

To: Seth Michael Hopkins <shopkins@townofbrandon.com>
Subject: the library support letter

Hello Seth,

Here is the letter | am suggesting for the library request. Feel free to edit it - - - | got most of this directly
from Molly.

Can we still get it into the packet for distribution tomorrow?
Thanks,
Tim

It is the board’s pleasure to write a letter in support of the Brandon Free Public Library and their request
for a Village Tax Credit/VCHB Grant. The Brandon Selectboard urges you to support BFPL in this request.

The Library has been a vital hub for our community since 1827, serving over 51,000 patron visits

each year as one of the only free cultural institutions in our area. The Library provides opportunities for
educational growth, free services, and personal development to all ages in a safe and friendly
atmosphere, The Library relies on the town, grants, and other private fundraising for its annual
$200,000 budget. Now, BFPL needs your help to fund necessary improvements to its historical building
in the heart of gur community.

By funding this request, you will help the Library meet their new vision to provide accessibility
for ALL persons to ALL library spaces, enable the expansion of usable spaces, improve energy
efficiency, comply with safety standards, and preserve the historical integrity of the building.
Installation of ADA bathrooms, a lift to provide access to upper floors, new technology plans,
meeting spaces and a more functional design which increases their ability to develop and
manage their collections are all part of the vision that we hope comes to fruition. The time is
now as the Library has not seen any significant updates since the 1960s. Patrons need, expect,
and deserve services and spaces beyond the Library’s current capacity.



Over 30 community volunteers and leaders are currantly working to raise funds through private
donations towards the project needs of $2.2M. To-date, the Library has secured over $1.4M —a
true testament of community support — but we need your help to cross the finish line. Please
take this letter into consideration as you make your decision.

Thank you

signed,

The Brandon Selectboard



May 20, 2022

Nanci McGuire ATECIS éﬁﬁ,@
Rutland District Manager

Rutiand Natural Resources Conservation District

170 So. Main St., Ste. 4

Rutland, VT 05701

802-775-8034 ext. 117

RE: West Serﬁinarv Street Park {Brandon) Stormwater Facllity Final Design

Dear Nanci,

Watershed C'ons'ulting Associates, LLC (Watershed Consulting) is pleased to submit this proposal for final
design of the West Seminary Street Park subsurface chamber system in Brandon, VT. We are pleédsed 1o
include in the project team subcorsultants Aldrich and Elliott {A+E).

Watershed Consulting, a Woman-Owned Smali Business (WOSB), has been working closely with municipal
and non-profit partners for over 15 years, developing inhovative, cost efféctive, and practical solutions to
better manage stormwater across the State '

Our team will be an excellent partner in this project. Watershed Consulting, having completed the initial
scoping, planning, and 30% designs with A+E for the site well understands the site-specific conditions and
the intricacies of the design. We are excited to continue the forward momentum established during the
prior design phase of the project. Our project team has a wealth of experience in diverse stormwater-
related projects and strives to efficiently and effectively provide the necessary engineering support to
successfully and smoothly develop the final design of this water quality improvement project,

Our team has considerable past project experience working together to ensure projects are well designed
and compliant with applicable permit requirements. The project team is very familiar with the entire final
design process from supplementary site survey and soils investigations to hydrologic and hydraulic {H&H)
modeling to the development of final 100% design plans and bid documents.

Watershed Consulting and A+E have a close working relationship and have partnered to complete many
stormwater management project designs in the past, including the five concept designs for the Brandon
Stormwater Master Plan. Our joint team’s interdisciplinary experience allows us to provide a unigue array
of skills and experience necassary to meet the needs of this project —from the engineering expertise of an
experienced Professional Engineer to informed on-site assessments and in-depth knowledge and
understanding of practice modeling and design and permit application preparation.

Our qualifications, experience, and drive for protecting our water resources sets us apart from our
competitors. | am certain that our team will provide superior services and will work with the Rutland NRCD
and the Town of Brandon to ensure superior 100% deasign plans for the West Seminary Street Park. We
would be privileged to have the opporiunity to work with you to continue the design for this site first
identified by the project team more than five years age. Thank you for your time and consideration. [ look
forward to hearing from you.

Sincerely on behalf of the project team,

P A .r) 4

s s
;, o VY ':J) Phdbe
e J
Andres Torizzo
Principal



WEST SEMINARY STREET PARK (BRANDON) STORMWATER FACILITY FINAL DESIGN

I

West Semlnary Street Park (Brandon)
Stormwater Famlrty Fmal De5|gn

%pcm © tm Request fr:,ar Propmsals '

SUBMITTEDTO: -~ SUBMITTED BY:

Nanci McGurre St ' - e e AndresTorlzzo
Rutlarid District Manager I - ‘ Watershed Consulting Associates, LLC
Rutland Natural Resources S I 208 FW“” Ave Suite 2H | PO Box 4413
Conservation ‘Distr‘ic_t - I o ST : e Burlington, VT 05406
170 So. Main St,, Ste. 4 R o (802)497-2367
Rutland, VT 05701 © .. .~ o o . : www . watershedca.com

802-775-8034 ext: 117 -
Nanci;r_n_c-guire@vt.na_cd'net.net

VATERSHED

CONSULTING

AE .Aldnch + Elliott

WATER R‘ESQURCE ENGINEERS

MAY 2022 ' 1



WEST SEMINARY STREET PARK [BRANDON} STORMWATER FACILITY FINAL DESIGN

Background and Context

In October of 2017, Watershed Consulting
Associates, LLC {Watershed Consulting) finalized
the stormwater master plan {SWMP) for the Town
of Brandon, Vermont, The purpese of the master
plan was to complete a thorough review of the
water quality issues in the Town and identify
potential stormwater retrofit projects to improve
water quality and reduce flooding in the town and
the greater Lake Champlain Basin. As part of this
effort, there were a number of high priority
projects identified in tha town including a project
at the West Seminary Street Park (Figure 1). As z
part of this project, a 30% design for the site was
developed by Watershed Consulting and Aldrich
and Elliott (A+E). This designincluced a subsurface - figure 1. Subsurface chambers are proposed under the
chamber system designed to manage the water wWest Seminary Street Park.

quality veolume (WQv) from the 22.75-acre

drainage area.

The chamber system proposed in the 30% design was initially conceived as an infiltration system. However
site-specific soil investigation revealed the presence of a restrictive clay layer that would prevent
infiltration. Additional soil investigations that will be completed during the final design process will
influence the final design of the system. The current 30% design plan will be reviewed and revised based
on feedback from stakeholders to the final design level,

Approach

Watershed Censulting has partnered with A+E to form our project team, Watershed Consulting and A+E
will build upon the momentum for this project built during the 30% design process. Our team has
established workflows that will streamiine the design process. A+E has a wealth of experience with efficient,
effective englneering practices and truly understands the needs of smaller communities such as Brandon.

The proposed approach will include utilizing the 30% level information prepared as part of the Brandon
SWMP. As our project team prepared the 30% dasign plan, we have all relevant data files in house and will
be able to smoothly contirue this work to complete the final design.

Scope of Work
Task 1. Kickoff Meeting

A kickoff meeting and ore-dasign conferance will be held with the Rutland NRCD, the Town of Brandon,
and other relevant stakeholders. During this meating, the stakeholders will discuss the project including a
review of the 30% reirofit ccneapt, the schedule for the final design, and commitment for future operations
and maintenance {0O&Mj), which will be critical for the long-term functionality of the project, Watershed

MAY 2022 5



WEST SEMINARY STREET PARK (BRANDON) STORMWATER FACILITY FINAL DESIGN

Consulting will catalog any comments on the retrofit concept for the site and any other remarks or
concerns,

| Task 2 Opera tfon and Ma/ntenance |
Followmg the kickoff meeting and taksng into account the dlscussions revol\nng around the future O&M for
the practlce, a draft O&M agreement will be created. This. agreement will be distributed to the project
partners for their review and comment. Any requested updates W|II be made, and the agreement will be
S|gned by the applicable partles

Task 3. Refine Existing Conditions Plan
The existing 30% design plan and supportmg materials created during.the Brandon SWMP will ke briefly
reviewed. As Watershed Consulting and A+E completed the:30% design for this project and Watershed
Consulting comptetedllnlt;al site |nve_st|gat|ons, we have a though understanding of all available data for
the site. During the kickoff meeting with broject stakeholders, Watershed Consulting witl catalog any
comments on the existing 30% design and any other rerrarks or concerns. A site visit will also be completed
to identify any Changes to the site sirce the 30% désign was completed.

The prOJect team will submit the updated emstmg conditions plan to project stakeholders for review and
comment. This will prowde an opportunity for further input on the design at this early stage. Any remaining
guestions or comments wn_II be addressed during Ta;k 5, the advancement to 60% design.

Task 4. Reﬁne Hya’ro/og/c & H ydf"a ulic Mode/

Existing hydrologic and hydraulic (H&H) model inputs will be reviewed and verified usmg a combmation of
desktop and field assessments. The H&H modeling will be updated as needed to support the development
of the final design. Modeling files will be provided in native format and in PDF summaries.

MAY 2022 ' 3



WEST SEMINARY STREET PARK (BRANDON) STORMWATER FACILITY FINAL DESIGN

I Task 5. 60% Design

Under this task, the project team will use information from the 30% design, feedback from stakeholders,
site visits, and updated H&H modeling to update the design to the 60% design level,

In order to comply with the 60% design guidelines and in light of the schedule for Task 5 and 6 (mid-winter),
it is proposed that the additional soils assessments and site survey take place at this stage in the project.
Note that the budget propesed includes this work under Task 5. When the project was initially identified,
soils were classified by the Natural Resources Conservation Service {(NRCS) soils data as hydrologic soil
group A. However, these classifications have since been updated and this area is now classified as
hydrologic soil group C, which corresponds to the findings of the initial soils investigations carried out during
the 30% design procass. For this task, it is proposed that the soils are assessed to confirm the presence of
the restrictive clay layer beyond the isclated area of the initial soil test pit. If this layer is not observed,
infiltration testing will be completed to determine infiltration feasibility. It is assumed that the Town will
provide a machine and eperator to dig the soil tast pits.

Likewise, additional site survey will be completed under this task. This will include collecting data regarding

pipe inverts, rim elevations, limited topography where LiDAR data is insufficient, and clearly marked
property boundaries.

One known change to the 30% plans includes a modification to the system’s outlet. The project was
reviewed by the VT DEC Wetlands Program, and it was determined that the outlet must be pulled back
from the wetlands into the 50-foot wetland buffer to reduce impacts to the wetlands. Additionally, existing
conditions topography and features will be refined to include access for construction and additional areas
of the project site as required.,

The primary elements of the 60% design procass are;
s Update of 30% drawings and specifications with increased detail and necessary changes based
on geotechnical assessment.
+  Overview of regulatory requirements and steps necessary to obtain permits,
s« (Cost projection for construction, perm’\tting fees, or any other costs associated with
implementation.
+ Stakeholder engagement with respeact to the design and Implementation process.
Permitting needs will be reviewed during this time with respect to, at a minimum:
*  River Corridor or Floodplain Review
*  Stream Alteration
*+ local Zoning
+  Wetlands
»  Stormwater (inclusive of Constructicn General Permit {CGP) Erosion Prevention and Sediment
Control (EPSC) Plan)

It is important to identify applicable permits at this early stage to ensure that any updates to the design
take permit requirements into account. As applicable to the site, Watershed Consulting will reach out to
the proper authorities to datermine the next steps for permit application submittal and approval during
Task 6. This will include at a minimum the VT DEC Wetlands Program and the likely Non-Reporting General
Permit (NRGP) that will be requirad due to known mapped wetlands and the need to place the system's

outlet within the 50-feot wetland buffer. '

MAY 2022 4



WEST SEMINARY STREET PARK (BRANDON) STORMWATER FACILITY FINAL DESIGN

Once the 60% design has been completed, with updated permit needs, a design review meeting will be
held with the project stakeholders to discuss the updates to the design and determrne needed revisions as
the design is advanced further

I T'ask 5 1 00/ Desrgn

Followmg the 60;6 de5|gh meeting Wlth project stakeholders requested revisions will be incorporated into
the 100% de5|gn

The primary elements of the 100% de5|gn process in accordance W|th ERP De5|gn Termmology and
Guidance are;

Final stampad design drawings with any revisions incorporated,
--Final b|d docurments prepared {see Task 7}; -
Permlt applications submitted for regulatory agency review (see Task 7),-and
- Fmal cost projection. . ' :

Draf’c 100% designs will be submltted and a flnal re\new meetmg wrll be held for review. The 100% de5|gns
will then be flnahzed and submltted ' : : :

Task 7. de Documents for Constructron thh Costs and Permit

Documenta tion
Bid documents will be developed foIIOng feedback received for the draft 100% de5|gn Costs will be
developed to reflect the finality of the demgns arid scope of work outlined In the bidding documents. Final
contract bidding documents will include” general conditions, supplementary condltlons proposed project
schedule, spemﬁcatrons and except|ons to standards where applicable.

Watershed Consulting will determine the specncrc requwements for the permits found to be applicable to
the site. Permit determmatlons may require site vislts with staff. from the Vermont Department of
Environmental Conservation (VT DEC); which Watershed Consultlng will attend. Appllcable permit
applications will be prapared during this task.

MAY 2022 E : ' 5



WEST SEMINARY STREET PARK (BRANDON} STORMWATER FACILITY FINAL DESIGN

Task 8. Final Performance Report

The BMP Implementation Final Report for Stormwater Practices form will be filled out for the practice. The
final performance report will be submitted.

Qualifications

Watershed Consulting Associates, LLC, with partners Aldrich and Elliot, are pleased to submit this proposal

and qualifications package. Watershed Consulting will ba the primary consultant for this project. Resumes
for key personnel are attached.

| Watershed Consulting Associates .

Watershed Consulting Asscciates, LLC {Watershed Consulting) is a Burlington, Vermont-based
environmental consuiting firm specializing in stormwater management, practice design, geospatial
planning, water guality investigations, and data analysls. Watershed Consulting consists of a team of
hydrologists, GIS specialists, and aguatic scientists with demonstrated experience in watershed
Investigation, green stormwater retrofit evaiuations, site design, advanced hydrologic & hydraulic and
water quality modeling, permitting, and GIS mapping and analysis. Watershed Consulting has significant
experience delivering complex, data intensive stormwatar master plan analyses that provide our ciients
with a targeted approach tc solving water quality problems that stays ahead of regulatory requirements.
Watershed Consulting is known for out of the box solutions to address stormwater related challenges that
cannot be solved by standard practices. Watershed Consulting is a long-standing contractor with several of
the Vermont MS4s, the State Clean Water Initiative, and has worked closely with Rutland NRCD on several
recent projects.

Andres Torizzo CPESC, CISEC, CESSWI CPSWQ — Principaf: Andres is the Principal and co-founder of
Watershed Consulting. Andres has been modeling, designing, permitting, and inspecting stormwater
projects in Vermont for over 19 years in a range of environments and geographic locations across the State.
His work has included partnering with municipalities and nonprofit groups on State and Federally funded
water quality improvement projects and has consulted for a range of development owners on industrial,
commertial, residential, and transportation-based sites. Andres holds a master’s degree In Geography from
the University of Colorado 2t Boulder and a bachelor's degree in Geological Sciences from Tufts University.
For this project, Andres will provide project oversight and serve as the overall project management lead as
well as provide technical modeling, design, and permitting oversight.

Marisa Rorabaugh, El — Water Resources Engineer: Marisa has a strong background in hydrologic znd
hydraulic modeling, extreme event forecasting, and flood characterlzation. She has developed technical
stormwater designs for new development and retrofit projects for comrercial and educationai facilities.
Marisa earned her master’s degree from Lancaster University In Sustainable Water Management and her
bachelor's degree from the Univarsity of Vermont in Environmental Engineering. Marisa is a licensed
Engineer Intern (El} in the State of Vermont. For this project she will assist with H&H modeling, treatment
practice design, soils assessments, and permitting.

Tommy Ott — GIS Technician: Tcmmy has a strong background in Geographic Information Systems {G1S),
cartographic design, remote sensing, and water quality compliance. Tommy manages topographic survey

MAY 2022 6




WEST SEMINARY STREET PARK (BRANDON) STORMWATER FACILITY FINAL DESIGN

data collection and provides GIS analysis and mapping at Watershed Consilting. He earied his bachelor's
degree from the University of Verment in Environmental Scierices with a minor in Geospatial Technofogles
Tommy is a certified FAA Part 107 Small Unmanned Aircraft Pilot and leads Watershed’s UAS program. For
this prOJect he will assist in GIS analy5|s modehng, soils assessments, and fle[d assessment mcludmg survey.

Our team is a wise cholce because:

We have desrgned nu merous stormwater retroﬂts to the 100% desngn level mcluding

oo o0

0 0000 0.0 0.0 0 0 0

; Bloretent:on practlces along Pearl Street Brandon

Bioretentiori and dry well in publie parklng lot— Café Provence Brandon

~ Biorétention for Recreatlon Fadility Parkmg Lot Treatmeént —~ Glorgetn Arena, Rutland

StormTech subsurface sand filterand two bloretentlon practlces —Berlin Elementary Scheol, Berlin
Fire Department and Chlmney Sweep, Berlin - Co

StermTech Infiltration Chambers —~Morrisville Town Garage, Morrisville

Stormwater Treatment Gravel \Netiand Nesti Drive, South. Burhngton / Shelburne

Bloretention for Unpaved Parking Lot Treatment - -Burke Mountaln Academy, Burke -

Inf|ltrat|on Swale and Basin - Burke Meuntaln Resort Burke -

~Gully Armor ng - Bear Path Lane Burke . -

'StormTech lnﬂltratlon Chambers —Warren Elementary School Warren _

. Stormw_ erT .eatmen:t Gravel Wetla nd = - Fayston. Elementary School Fayston
Bioretention for. Commercial Parklng kot Treatment Village Square Parkmg Lot, Waitsfield
'Multlple Bloretentlon and Infiltration Practlces, Marrisville . '

_Bianchard Beach Treatment Wetland, Burfington

Town Garage Remedratlon and. Floodplaln Restoratlon : Former Town Garage Cabot
StormTech Infiltration Chambers - Cambndge Elementary School, Cambndge
Storimmwater Treatment Gravel Wetland -St Albans Park and Rlde, St Albans

Watershed Consu!tmg has WOrked closefy wrth Aldrlch + EIIIott [A+E) on many projects in the past,
Continuing the- strong partnershlp from the 30% eonceptual desrgn with A+E will expand on the
collabora‘uon of thIS mterdmmphnary team,

MAY 2022 o S 7



WEST SEMINARY STREET PARK {BRANDON} STORMWATER FACILITY FINAL DESIGN

| Aldrich + Elliott

Aldrich + Elliott was formed tc provide clients with personal, responsive, quality engineering services at
competitive fees. A+E Is committed to sustaining water resources, The A+E team specializes in water,
wastewater, and stormwater engineering for municipat clients. The project team has the depth of
experience on similar projects. A+E teamed with Watershed Consulting to develop the 30% plans for this
site, so they are well aware of site-spacific detzils. This team brings a wealth of stormwater experience
coupled with big picture municipal infrastructure perspective from study to design to construction that will
provide a long-term cost-effective solution that meets the project schedule.

lason Booth, P.E. —Vice President: Jason joined A+E in 2003 and is now a shareholder in the firm, Over 14
years with A+E, Jason’s background includes extensive experience in the study, design, permitting, and
construction of municlipal water, wastewater, stormwater, and transportation projects, with special
expertise in construction management and administration.

Merrick Gillies— Staff Engineer: Merrick joined Aldrich + Elliott, PC {A+E) as a Staff Engineer in 2018.
Merrick’s experience has baen primarily in the preparation of studies and permitting of various water,
wastewater, and stormwater projects

Joshua Nelson ~ CAD/Survey Manager/Site Technician: Josh is a CAD Operator and Survey Manager. Josh
has been with A+E for 15 years and has extensive experience performing site and survey work in the field.

MAY 2022 8



6 _ 7207 AYW

 SupmsucO pAYSIeIEA

.B.o_m.g vmu:._ug,_ m_,.m_%_p.gwg nmwm‘ao‘a v
|esodoldd 150D

NSISIA TYNIH ALITIOVS HILYMINEOLS (NOONVYHE) Ndvd LITHLES AYYNIINIS 1SIM



o1 7T0Z AYIN

hGyEC. " 2003y Satenliogas [RUR g y5e L
[ewer O S ERIOG PIF T Y581 |
| 52322 -

|unroz

pady Cydiepy | oEs “uep A “AOH 130 gd=5 By fanp | Bunr

ey

‘aul|aw3 pasodold By} S81E4ISN||] MO B]gel 9y "palsanbau swelB Wl 943 UluliMm pelejdwos 8q 01 pascdoid ale s)sel |y

ajnpayos

NSIS3A TYNIZ ALIIDVE YFLYMINYOLS (NOTONYHE) MuYd L334LS AYNINIS 153M



WEST SEMINARY STREET PARK (BRANDON) STORMWATER FACILITY FINAL DESIGN

Project Examples

Town of Brandon, VT - Stormwater Master Plan : ATERSHED
BRANDON, VT - 2017 GOMSULTING

The Town of Brandaon received an Ecosystem Restoration Program grant to
conduct a town-wide master planning study. Watershed Consulting with
subcontractor Aldrich and Elliott {A+E) was hired to assess the Town’s
stormwater management retrofit opportunities. The project team
gathered the necessary data, conducted preliminary desktop analysis, and .
freld verifiad over 50 BMP ogportunities. The Top 20 were selected, with 5

1 Ryt selected for final
1 /—mmmummmwwz
T ey 30% design.
o " et -
g N r‘ff_:‘f’;w Additionally,  “a
i AN
i

concept rendering was developed for the Park
mm’*‘-ﬁuwl Street neighborhood illustrating the potential
* streetscape - bioretention . - features  that
- Watershed Consultmg and A+E  designed.
Watershed Consulting also conducted a road
erosion assessment-of 20 priority road segments
and prioritized -them. S sites were chosen for
final road erosron solutlons

i
-k

i Tl NERERTH b o
e et
< - et . - e

W gy gy, -
Prn s

Pearl Street Flnal De5|gn an implementatron . | _
VATERSHED

BRANDON, VT- 2021 ' ' s CONRSULTING
A project along Pearl Street in Brandon, VT was identified by Watershed
Consulting as a pricrity area for stormwater retrofit during the 2017
Brandon Stormwater Master Plan (SWMP) due to its crucial location within
the Neshobe River watershed and anticipated high pollutant removal
efficiencies. Pearl Street has particularly wide rights-of-way and sandy soils
that are ideal for infiltration. The concept envisioned for the Pearl Street
area was a series of bioretention practices {bio- -swalas] along the entire
length of Pearl Street. These practices make dse of the wider than average.
street width to create Iong, narrow bloretehtron prac‘uces within the rlght~of~way that reduce pollutants
by infiltrating ruhoff to the groundwater. Runoff
flows into 3 concrete notchrinlet and overflows using
‘existing catch basins. 30% designs were completed
during the SWMP. development. This design was
then advanced to the 100% design - phase.
Watershed Consu1tmg staff completed topographrc
surveys and soil |nvest[gat:ons along Pearl Street to
verify the Infiltration rate of the native sandy solls.
Cost projections were also developed. This project
‘was estimated to rermove 6.49 Ibs of TP ahnually.
The team completed site stakeouts"for" constt’uttion
and provided oversight durrng the constructron
activities in 2021,

MAY 2022 ' 11



WEST SEMINARY STREET PARK (BRANDON) STORMWATER FACILITY FINAL DESIGN

Café P i ' |
afe Provence Final Design and Implementation ATERSHED

BRANDON, VT 2021 CONSULTING
Watershed Consulting completed a Stormwatar Master Plan (SWMP) for
the Town of Brandon. As part of this SWMP, 5 sites were identified for
concept {30%} designs including the Town-owred public parking lot
behind Café Provence. This parking area serves numerous buildings and
businesses and the stormwater runoff from this area was draining
directly into the Neshcbe River, Final design was then completed for the
site. These ‘_IOO% plars mcluded a bioretention area to collact runoff from
Z the parking lot and a dry well.
This design was successfully
implemented  within  the
constraints of the existing
buildings, traffic patterns, and
the river’s sensitive riparian area and corridor to manage
stormwater effectively. A dry well was designed to manage
the runoff from the Café’s patio area. Watershed Consulting
completed construction oversight for this. project’s
implementation.

Brandon Park Street Retrofit Design y
8 ATERSHED

BRANDON, VT 2018-2019 CONBULTING
Working with project partners Aldrich + Elliott and Greenleaf Designs,
Watershed Consulting developed a comprehensive streetscape retrofit
for Park Street in Brandon, VT based on concepts developed by our :
team during the Brandon Stormweater Master Plan. These retrofits. :
included the creation of eight different strestscape bioretention
features designed to aesthetically enhance the street, calm traffic on
this important cycling and pedestrian corrider, and treat stormwater
runoff to eliminate pollution to the Neshobe River. Watershed
Consulting conducted the hydrologic, hydraulic, and water quality
pollutant load modeling and worked closely with Greenleaf Designs to
develop planting plans for each bioretention. The team developed a series of photo simulations for the
street to foster communication and understanding of the practices and their aesthetic appeal between
municipal officials and local residents.

MAY 2022 12



WEST SEMINARY STREET PARK (BRANDON) STORMWATER FACILITY FINAL DESIGN

Giorgetti Arena Bioretention Retrofit 7, .
RUTLAND, VT 2017 | ATECENSQHE;?

Watershed Consulting conducted a stormwater master plan for the
East Creek and Tenney Brook watersheds in ‘the City and Town of
Rutland  in  partnership with the RUtland Natural Resources
Conservation District, During the project, which Invoived extensive
fleld surveys, desktop analysrs and BMP pricritization, 2 ‘project was
identified at the Glorgettl Arena, a public sports facility. The retrofit
involves collecting runafffrom the parking lot, part of the roof, and a.
_portion of the ‘adjacent sfreet and routing it to one of tWo deep sump
catch basins with ‘snout’ inlet devices designed to encourage sediment
i deposstlon From ' the
catchbasins, runoff flows
to two rock-lined swales
" that further pre-treat runoff for pol!utants Runoff then
floods up'into a flat area planted with perenmal flowers
‘designed for: rain gardens. The: entlrety of the Channel
Protection volume {CPV) mfultrates o groundwater '
_Overflow s fouted to a stabilized outletarea nextto the East -
Creek. - The’ project:is a good aesthetic addition to the-
_entrance of the parking.lot at Glorgetti arena. The retrofit
was com pIeted Suminer 2017.

Rutland Clty = Rutland Hrgh School / Stafford %?'ATERSHED
Technical Center Stormwater Retroflt S R LGNS UL TN G
RUTLAND, VT- 2017.-2018
Watershed Consultlng completed a stormwater retroﬂt design,
partnership with Aldrich, and Elliott (A+E), for a stormwater retrofit, to ,
treat the parklng lotat the Rutland High School and Stafford Technical
Center. The. parklnglot is splat between the East Creek and Moon Brook
watersheds. The portlon that drains to East Creek passes through an
undersized dry pond “before ‘entering the stormwater sewer. This
project designed a retrofit ofthfs site into a Ilned broretentron practice
to treat for the water quallty volume' and manage the channel
protection volume to. the greatest extent poss:b]e The portion that
drains to Moon Brock is currently unman' ged The: enwsmned concept:
: ' : . isa fined bloretentton that will manage both,
the water quallty and channel protect|on'
volumes through the use of a flow- contro!
- orifice. Both prac‘dces are de5|gned to
_aesthetrcally ‘enhance the entrance to the
school as well as the back of the parking ot
area. Watershed Consuftmg and A+
compIeted 30% concept ‘designs for these
sites and provided a photo simulation {left).

MAY 2022 D 13



, 208 Flynn Avenue, Suite 2H | PO Box 4413

1 Burlington, VT 05406
it ATERSH}:JD P: 802.497.2357
CONSULTING

, www.watershedca.com
Stormwater Managemant | Green Infrashruciure Dasign | Water Quiality | Master Planning

Andres Torizzo
Principal, Hydrologist

Mr. Torizzo is Principal, Hydrologist, and co-founder of Watershed
Consulting Associatas, LLC., 3 firm specializing in stormwater
management consulting services. Mr. Torizzo has worked for State
agencies and numerous municipal and private entities on
operational stormwater management and erosion-sediment
control design and permitting issues, in a range of sattings including
linear transpartation, commercial, industrial, residential, and
agricultural.

Mr. Torizzo's specialties include stormwater mapping, inventory,
and master planning, illicit discharge detaction and elimination
{IDDE}, stormwater hycrologic & hydraulic modeling, stormwater
pollutant load modeling, retrofit dasign, low-impact davelopment
design, and Total Maximum Daily Load implementation (TMDL)
investigations.

KEY FIRM ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Project Management — Oversees project budgets, timelines,
deliverables, quality control, and coordination with partners and
clients.

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Public-Private Partnerships (P3) for Stormwater Management
(2019-Ongoing) — Provided oversight for all project operations
including subconiractor management, task order tracking and
deliverable development, retrofit design, modeling, stakeholder
outreach and engagement, GIS analysls and visualization,

Northfield Infiltration Chamber Design (2018) — Developed design,

and managed permitting for large-scale Infiltration systemn for the Town of Northfield, Vermont. The
chamber system manages a large area of residential development and is one of the largest chamber
systems installed in the State. The project provides for water quality improvement and aids in flood
reduction in the Dog River,

Central Vermont Stormwater Master Plans {2016— 2019) — Led efforts to perform stormwater management
master plans in twelve Vermont communities, generating over 150 priority sites for field investigation and
assessment. Conducted modeling for retrofit designs for nearly all priority sites and generated modeling
information for production of 60 30% concept designs,

Potash Brook Flow Restoration Plan {(2014-2016) — Worked for the City of South Burlington, Vi and the
Vermont Agency of Transportation on a Flow Restoration Investigation for the stormwater-impaired Potash
Brook watershed.

SELECTED PUBLICATIONS & PRESENTATIONS

Torizze, A. and Garvey, K.M. 2017. Flow restoration planning in the stormwater impaired Potash Brook
Watershed, South Burlington, VT. StormCon, August 29-31, Bellevue, WA,

Torizzo, A., Allen, D., Garvey, K., and Bruno, M. 2016. Monitoring and Tracking Chloride Trends. Stormwater
Magazine, July/August 2016, p. 18-37.



208 Fynn Avenue, Suite 2H | PO Box 4413

ATERSI—IED 7 Burlington, VT 05406

CONSULTING . . P: 802.497.2367
www watershedca.com

Stormwates Management | Green infra_s‘trl.icture desidn | water quality | master planning

Marisa Rorabaugh (She/Hers)
Water Resources Engineer / El
Marisa joine'd Watershed chns'u'it':ng with a background in
hydrologit and hydrauhc modehng, watershed hydrology, extreme
rainfall event foreoastlng and flood charactenzahon At Watershed
Consulting, Mansa focuses on' stormwater deSIgn for new and

retrofit deve!opment including stormwater modehng, treatment
system 5|z]ng, and permlttlng

SELECTED PROJ'ECT EXPERIENCE
uU-32 Mlddle & ngh School 3- 9050 Permlttlng (2021 Ongomg)

Seeking operatlonal stormwater permlt to comply with GP 3-9050
3-AcreRule - req_u_lrements Performing technical investigation to
support advancement of existing 30% gravel wetland designs to
100%. Hydraulic and hydrologic modeling will be performed to
support the proposal of two gravel Wet!ands to prowde treatment
for the unpernntted portlons ofthe slte

Berlin Elementary School 3—9050 Permlttlng'(2’021—Ongolng)

Seeklng 3-9050 stotmwater permlt to comply W|th 3-Acre Rule
requirements. Performing techn cal investigation tg determlne the

utility and. functionality - of axisting dry wells, Hydraulic -and
hydro[ogic modellng will be perf’ormed to assess if the dry wells
and the newly constructed bloretentmn pond are sufficient. to
meet treatment votume requ rements : :

Burllngton High Schoo[ Alternate S:te Analysis {2021)

Performed a comparat!ve analys:s of thres prospect:ve sites for the new Burlington High School campus
from a stormwater management sta ndpo int; Analysis included characterization of existing infrastructure,
modeling changes in stormwater discharge based on proposed impaervious:footprints, sizing potential
treatment systems investigating’ permlttlng requirements and summarizing in a techmcal report for each
site.

Hydrologlcal Response Research (2019 2020)

Utllrzed the Data-based Mechan stic modellng method to extract dominant streamflow response
characteristics to a range of storm events over an 18-year period to mathematically characterize the
response variation for flood forecasting applications. Performed a comparative analysis between the
identified Dynamic Response Characteristics and several descriptive rainfall intensity metrics with respect
to synoptic-representative Lamb Weather Types and a novel characterization of synoptic evolution around
peak flow.



208 Flynn Avenue, Suite 2H | PC Box 4413

TERSI‘IED Burlington, VT 05406

CONSULTING P: 802.497.2367
Stormwater Management | Green infrastructure design | water quality ! masier planning www.watershedea.com
Tommy Ott
GIS Technician

Tommy Ott is a GIS Technician at Watershed Consulting
Associates, LLC, specializing in spatial data collection, analysis,
and cartography related to stormwater and water quality
investigation. He has demonstrated experienca working on
complex stormwater masterplans in a variety of settings and
scales. Tommy is a FAA certified unmanned aircraft systems
(UAS) pilot and utllizes this technology for high-resolution
mapping and 3D modeling, land use investigation, and
construction inspection and documentation.

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

US Virgin Islands Watershed Management Project (2021 —
Ongoing)

Lead technician for acquiring, reviewing, and editing a diverse
array of geographic data for an eight-watershed master plan
project across the islands of St. Themas and St. Croix. Piloted
small UAS (“drone”] for site inspection and landscape
photography.

Public Private Partnership {P3) Project (2019-2021)

Lead technician for evaluation of priority stormwater retrofit
sites Including site survey, drainage area delineation, land
use/landcover development, model preparation, and static and
web map production.

Georgia Shore Stormwater and Shoreline Erosion Assessment
(2020 - 2021)

Generated a comprehensive data library following a data

gathering and review process. Performed a multivariate raster analysis to determine hot-spot areas along
the Georgia shoreline region. This analysis was used to direct focus for additional field investigation and
stormwater practice design.

Coral Bay Watershed Management Plan (2019-2021})

Led spatial data processing and analysis efforts for the hydrologic and hydraulic modeling of proposed
stormwater BMPs in the Coral Bay watershed in St. John, USVL. Primary author on solid waste management
and pathogen sections of the final plan.

~ Milton Phasphorus Control Plan (2020 -~ 2021)

Provided support for the development of a phosphorus control plan {PCP) for the Town of Milton including
modeling input development, mapping, data analysis, and data presentation. Aided in the prioritization and
cost estimation for a suite of proposed stormwatar BMPs for the Town.



BACKGROUND

Jason Booth, PE | Vice President

Jason Booth ls the Vice Prasident of Aldrich + Elliott, PC (A+E) and has extensive expertence In water
resource englneering since 2003. His professional expertise Is in the study, deslgn, permitting and
construction of muhicipal transportation, water, wastewater, and stormwater projects The following is a
sampling of Jason s professional experlence on similar projects.

PROJECT EXPERIENCE | STORMWATER

2001-Present
Vice President.
Aldrich + Elliott

EDUCATION -

Bachelor of Sclehee, Civit

Engineering, Unlversity . -

of Vermont, 2004
Master of Civil
Engineering, Water
Resources, ,I_\loru\rlch o
Unlivérsity, 2014+
PROFESSIONAL
REGISTRATION : -

Licensed Profes‘slo'n'al_ ‘
Engineer -

Vermont

Notary Public - Vermonit

PROFESSIONAL
AFFILIATIONS -

Ame rican. Soclety of avil

Engineers: President
20112012 -

Vermont Saciety ot

Professional Engineets:

President 2011-2013
American Council of
Engineering Companies:
National _Di'reC_tor 2016-
Present

PUBLIC AFFILIATIONS

Commissioner,
Northwest Regionat
Planning Commissian:
2010-2013

Chair, Grant Writing
Committee, Town of
Fairfield, VT: 2009-2010

Brandon

_ Cobb Hlll Culvert replacement |ncluded replacement ofa damaged culvert with a new 42’
alumlnum arch . :

. ‘-Brandon Stormwater Master Plan mc]udmg development of conceptual designs for five {5)
‘mdlwdual stormwater treatment practxces

_ 'Park Street Stormwater desian, con5|st|ng of 15 Bioswales and roadway |mprovements
: Funded through aVTrans Enwronmental Mltlgatlon Grant

' Essex lunction .
'Conversmn of a natural detentmn area at the intersection of Farrwew Drlve and Route15to a
. smgle bay gravel wetland with a foreba\/

L EssexTown _
7 New! "best fit" mlcropool extenided detentien pond on Kellogg Road. Fundlng administered by
: VTrans : :

o New swwl concentrator and non—structural pract[ces for an unpermltted stormwater discharge
.on Colbert Street

' Assusted w1th Flow Restoratlon Plans for the Indian and Sunderland Brooks.
. Northfie Id Water Street; Stormwater lmprovements

Design of a new subsuiface chamber system to capture and infiltrate runoff from the
> surround ng subwatershed

_ -NRCS CD/C:ty of Rutland
‘Easterly Avenue Stormwater consrstlng of final design for a subsurface chambered system to
. treat stormwater fromlarge nelghborhood Partriership with Watershed Consu!tlng

"Rutland ngh School consrstlng of final de5|gn for stormwater treatment practlces at Rutland

ngh School to address untreated runoff from exlstlng |mpervlous

- South E!urlmgton — ‘
Stormwater retrofit on Hayes Avenue including reconstruction of a stormwater wet detentlon

pond with a forebay and permanent pool, three (3) vegetated swales toi lmprove geometry,
reduce runoff velocities and storm draln modifications. ’

: __C|ty of South Burlmgton permlttlng assistance for four {4) stormwater prOJECfS Assistance

was to brmg exlstzng private developments |nto compllance with local stormwater rules,

Evaluation, sizing and design of a subsurface chamber infiltration system at Picard Circle. The
new system treats runoff from an approximately 60 acre subwatershed on and around Airport
Parkway Fundmg pro\nded through the VTrans Transportatmn Alternatives program.

AE Aldrich + Elliott

WATER RESOVRCE ENGINEERS



Jason Booth, PE | Vice President

PROFESSIONAL CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND DESIGN

Evaluation, sizing and design of storage improvements for two gravel wetlands which treat full WQv and CPv velumes,
one detention basin and one sand filtration basin. Funding is provided through a Lake Champlain Basin Program grant.

Assisted with a Flow Restoration Plan for the Bartlett Brook.

Designing storage improvements for four existing detention basins within a homeowner’s association on Pinnacle Drive.
The aim of this project is to bring the basins to current design standards in order for the City to take ownership from the
association. Design is a mix of gravel wetlands, sand filters, and control structures.

Design of various stormwater management practices with the Red Rocks Park in order to better protect several trails and
the beach line from erosion.

City of St. Albans

Design of a new gravel wetland adjacent to the future Federal Street connecter off of the St. Albans State Highway
extension. The gravel wetland design incorporates a forebay and a dual cell gravel wetland to meet WQv and CPv
volumaes.

Other Projects:
®  Brighton Mill Street: New treatment wetiand and raingarden design;
= City of Newport: Design of a new subsurface treatment practice;
*  Town of Milton: Main Street Stormwater System Improvements including outfall stabilization;
= Morristown: Final design of a stermwater swirl separator and an infiltration gallery with a treatment swale;
= St Albans: Design and Construction of roadway and stormwater improvements on Fairfield Street
= Williston: Flood assistance on Cld Stage Road including evaluation and implementation of culvert improvement

SPECIAL PROJECTS

develop a number of research projects related to design and long term reliability of gravel wetlands in Vermont., We are
currently partnering with four {4) municipailties that are MS4 communities, the University Of Vermont College Of
Engineering and Mathematics and the Coliege of Natural Resources. Two current projects are the development of a
reliable and replicable wetland soil for use in Graval Wetlands and a long term project to monitor the performance
characteristics of gravel wetlands, particularly nutrient removal efficiency,

AE Aldrich + Elliott

WATER RESOURCE ENGIMNEERS



Merrick Gillies | Staff Engineer +

Merrick joined Aldrich + Elliott, PC (A+E) as a 5taff Engineer in 2019. Merrick’s experience has been primarily in the
preparatlon of studies, and permitting of various water, wastewater, and stormwater projects. The following is a sampling
of Merrick’s plannmg, design, and construction experience: :

A+E PROJECT E)(PERIENCE

Enosburg )

Completed CSO Long Term Contro! Plan for the Village of Enasburg Falls. Preparation of the
report included the evaluation of alternatives, and the coordination of several forms of
fieldwork to form a better understandmg of the existing mfrastructure

BACKGROUND

Staff Engineer
Aldrich + Eiliott, PC
May 2018 - Present

_ Highgate
EDUCATION ‘ Preparation of mapping for d feambahty study for extehsion of water and sewer services to
the Franklin County State Airport and surrounding area.

Bachelor of Science,
Environmental
Engineering,
University of -
Vermont, 2019

Sheldon
Assisted with the preparation of a 20-year evaluation of wastewater treatment facilities,
including collection system, pump statlons and WWTF

Hartford
Ongoing preparation of a CSO Long Term Contro! Plan for the Clty of Hartford. Project scope
includes the evaiuation of alternatives at the existing overflows in the sewer system.

NBWport o :

" .Ongoing preparatlon of a C50 Long Term Control Plan forthe Clty of Newport Acquisition of
monitoring equ1pment and the evaluation of existing service areas are kéy aspects of this
project. - : S

AE Aldrich + Elliott

WATER RESOURCE EMGINEERS



Joshua Nelson | CAD /Survey Manager

losh Is a CAD Operator and Survey Manager at Aldrich + Elliott, PC {A+E} and has been with A+E since
2002. Josh is a Licensed Class A Designer and has provided field representative services on several

projects. The following is a sampling of Josh/s professional experience as a CAD Operator and Survey
manager.

A+E STORMWATER PROJECT EXPERIENCE

BACKGROUND

CAD Operator/Survey
Manager
Aldrich + Elfiott

2002-Present
EDUCATION

Associates of Science,
Civil & Environmental
Engineering Technology,
Vermont Technical
College, 2002

CERTIFICATIONS

Class A Designer — issued
July 2009

Brighton Town
Resident representative for Construction of new stormwater improvements to include;
stormwater exiiltration, constructien wetlands, and new rain garden.

Essex Junction

Survey and design for the conversion of a natural detention area at the intersection of
Fairview Drive and Route 15 to a gravel wetland with water quality treatment bays.

Hartford

Design support of improvements to the WRI downtown stormwater collection systerm and
extension of the system’s outfall.

Survey and design for new water mains; sidewalk, sewer and stormwater improvements;
roadway reconstruction; and retaining wall reconstruction along South Main Street, Gates
Street and North Main Street,

Montpelier
Survey and design of four various stormwater management practices adjacent the Steven’s
Branch Tributary.

Northfield

Assisted design of approximately 1,100 linear feet of new stormwater drainpipe, flow splitter
structure, and large stormwater chamber infiltration system.

South Burlington

Resident services for Stormwater retrofit project to include reconstruction of a stormwater
wet detention pond with a forebay and permanent pool, three (3) vegetated swales to
Improve geometry, reduce runcff velocities and storm drain modifications. This project
Implements stormwater BMPs o reduce pesk flows and provide treatment of discharges to
the impairad Potash Brook watershed.

Design of an infiltration system at Picard Circle to meet targets set by the Flow Restoration
plan. This project is implemented below grade infiltration chambers and is utilized funding
from VTRANS.

A+E OTHER PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Newport
Annual wastewater inspections for the Town,

AE Aldrich + Elliott

WATER RESQURCE ENGIMNEERS



Z102 *ane

o

o
LY
ar

i

F909}

o LR

'

NYld ¥ILSVH
YIALVMNEOLS

INGHHIA
‘NOaNYHg
40 HMOL

1K i3

TGATIH)

ey o vey
SELL0LBTOR ¢
ZGr0.1A PY =g
2 g ‘ool by B
se33m9ma B3 entsa

BRI £ 0Py

=14

ok [ o o L=, |_STS
TIVOS JIHIVED N

KON TS

IV13A TWALNO NVEAWHOLS TTvOIdAL

Tl 3MOLS 40 HLOM DL NFRMIN ¥ SMOHd 1

SZY 0L A0 Lout

Nols asnid K1 302t

FOO0L WAL LOVA

T 3INUS B 3dAL 30 FE

BUB8=LN0 AN 4D 31
STBESAND AN| 41 5t
FF01=M AN i 5t
LS t=py
L T ]

EEEE.DE-‘QL

JETDE=L0 AN 24 3t
PETE=HI AN 3d 3t

FTLE=TY B
o AR F\J_
TG00 HULYATT LY LHOMLYG QL SOV AN

VAN

U ELACT (1D B L At 5 oo 0 s




0T Amr
it
e
e

eI

ety

¥90etL

avr
O L3N0 B

SYESd
ERLYMALOLS

SLNIRIACBIHI
UALYMHHOLS

LNOWHIA
“NOONYHE
A0 NmOLl

o

HDUS#2E30

[Enpan)

CELL 84408
ZSv50 L "Ry xeexy
FHIg teelg lick g
SaaIMIaNs 3RO ivm

HOlll3 + Y3MPIY

=04

HeN Twes
V130 HONTHL NIVHOWHOLS TWDIGAL

TMORRXE QWS N0 IS
ARENNS T 250 NYD HOLYLNOS TIROYE TULMI 831 1

Rt 40 WISHETT TIH 3HL 30 LH0ANS MU0
Y SAOTMIENOS TIEVIS ToId ¥ HMAGHA D1 SR0Gd T

“GROYIYE JOH SI 3o DANSHS QL 3 ¥ IEHL
Shd HA0 UDTAIC OISA 38 TIVKS SIBDTYL ONVHIN O 1

HETVOL OWA SROIS

SHNEEINED 0L

SIS NV HaroR
TR HI0B 0 LB S o
2

ONIGYCT 0ZH MW OMMISHUM OL (NS0 33 TIVES SISLMNMIS T
s O00DF=VERN TEUS Y GO0ATNG T

DN S| IO INMARINTD QL PR MOXd THoHRYA 40 HEdE0 4| OITVISNI 38
Wy WOWJ SSTT MO0 [TI £ 5[ HIYE HOUND 40 HiBa 4 )

“ETHIGNT 28 TIM 0L TINGS

ZUNED N3O 40 38N KM
RANEAES Flava
1 HILYD WUDISKTH

1€ LN 36) ST
YEOTOL 1GU JOR L
DM e AT A
X5W 0l ALVGHED BN QS
THOENE TERINS A6 0L CAmangd
T Js
GRS K]
NOUDFE A3
oy J— ETINOS LSYTRI
]
HiSvEHAIYY
TRRAWD “HINK ORY W 0l 2
BOL0Ud GRS 708 O ~ Teshs
B TNV NGRS
WHS HIDKT] HONZRL N340 SNOKINILE 20w
Q7 HIGI TN HONZHL SIHIOM Y0RENG
I— The inoHs
D L wwm_xmuﬁhzﬂ
[T+ - L KIVORINCD 15550
——— AERYD ¥ NG ORELARD KON
] L VLIEN 360 .01 0L d ¥ AViL
MMYT SRS 3dld E03 “Luod Eﬁm&z_
04 3did O 0F HXS ¥ w_.hﬂ,.
o 2008 HEM e
150 (v v HI SIS
E@BSR»E.EH?_:& L EHH 204} VIO
ST v FoIls 5od

SHYZS LNOHEM DRSO SNOANUNGD 30W $01 SLIEWYID
WY TS KOLYANDDS MISHIZE  TYEE [GhOdddY 50
FIDGUOTI MIADR XURGHT SHLETINASO2S SOY J0 SIS oML

I NN 2 OO CADL
TRDGIOT HEACA=NON 108 SOUHLNASD3D
SO HUM MGy SOLVS) Rt v

STIVH HOILYAYINE G302 MY TVOIYEA HLOE ¥02 TIVHL NDUWAVING 3L Of ATTCINOZIEOH (HIEDG 38 LSO OIS 4/ §

“SIGEMYHD HOLISTIOD tELVHPRIOLS TV CILVDNZI0D
JESVIOWEEY, 9 RAISIA WHLIAIS 303 I GivONYLS, LO/Z4 PESY HLWM SONVONC0Y M) GERDISI 3 TIVHS SUEEHVHD DRLDS %

"SRV RALITTIO

{211) ONYS 2owNvsO

UIMLS ITUR

(DEVANADD STIOK) AR KOV
sh__.mm AN (LS 9 WLUVHIILS Tiv CLYORRIS (3d) SHTUWHLIWG L0 NOLYIHIDISS QUNONYLS, TT6T1 ISV N0 "SUBINYHD HOLTATID) WELNMIAS
Tivh ELYSGD () TR0 B NOURILITSS QYONWLS, ST AISY 0 SUGHEMNOR S 0L MACMCO TWHS SWIENVHD DR-D8 )
SAEEAYHD SNIOHNOBANS T3 30,
EHINIEN LIV DN (SFEED LT 348 L3 L 551 30 WOHINN W SMON MIEHWAD {NILIMKDD IR
HDIDVANGD AHOLVEER, ¥ HER LN Xk 8 TI¢ 1y KDILOSI0HA ANGOS 304 SNOIS HOUVANNOS ¥ 03 1)
HE GELAYANGD FEIHOL EL OYA OIS HE A0 TG0 10AK (WG 50} NLMEIS Sa¥ 3 06 0205

P
4
Si06=ATE
Ak —
2176=ATE
ROTE=ATT
K
& {IWOLHA 50 TISTE 38 W2}
h TN NOLLYAYE
SE=ATR
H-ATT
(e 201 T}
INUS /T
LEEEATE —

WRIE [EAQNddY O

K QMY TS WvaT TR N2AGH=NIN LI0G SOUTHINASART SOV

HL Y3AD TYREAH &0 ,Z1 ¥aldy SNOLIWAACO NEHE
‘EOLO0RS TUONYLS 252 0L RLIYCHOS THNMOYS TTEVLNE




INSWAINDA NOILONHISNTD HOd SN IHDISA HO SININTHINDIH NOLLYTIVLSN! NO SNOILSINT ANY HLUA F6ST-268-685-1 LY HOALWHOLS LOVINGD

CALNYHYYM QUYANYLS
HOALWHOLS 3HL 336NN A3H3A0D LON JHY GOHLIN HSNd ONV SWNd. IHL AH 039OVWVQ SYFENYHD ANY "QOHLIW THAMOVE 39871d320v
NY LON St ANV SHIEWVHO THL O1 39YRYA 3SNVD AV SHIGWVHD 40 SMOY JHL NF3M139 SNOLS LNINGIEHE HSNd OL ¥37040 ¥ 40 3SR

"ONIGNG HO TIAVHL MONYEL dWNGT 804 QIXINDIY S SYIAWYHD THL ¥IAC $TVINILYIN H3A0D 03ZIIEYLS A0 (W 008} .98 TINS €

v 3AIND NOILINHLSNOD 082-00/0F-06/0LE-DS HOILWHOLS., IHL Ni NNOA 38 NYD INSWAINGS NOLLINGLSNOD HO: SLIWE LHDI3MM »

SAAND NOLLDNYLSNOD 08-DO0F-0SALEDS HIZLWHOLS, BHL

HLiM IONYAHCD0Y NI GIHOVIY Juv SHIdID Tt 854084 TUNN 0IMOTIY TV SHOLVAVOXE HO 'SHONUL dWNNG "SY3TV0T Q3814 ¥38any ON»

"SYIEWYHT ZHVE NO J3MOTIV S LNZNAINDI ON »
“GALNIM ST SHISWYHD OPL-DS 8 0LE-0S HIAO INTWAINDI NOILONHLSNOD SO 3SnaHL ¢

v, 3aqinD

NOLLONHLSNOD 02L-230/0FL-DS/04€-08 HOALWHOLS. SHL HLIM IONYANO0IDY NI QI TTV.LSNS 38 TIVHS SHIEAYHD 0b/-0S ¥ 01E-08 HOILNHOLS i3

MINFAHINDSE NOILDNYLISNGD ¥0d S3LON

“HONMY 311S NOLLOMELSNOD WOHL WILSAS INJWIOYNYIN A3 LYMWNHOLS
TIWHHUNSBNS IHL LOAL0HD OL SLTTNI TV B304 NOILINELSNOD DNIUAQ SLIEISNI WL HOLWD WHOISXTH. 40 380 IHL SONTFWACIIY 8av
P BIINIONT
NS0 3LS IHL OL S3LIOVIYD DONIYYIE STYIEZLYIN NOILYONNOL B3EWYHD HLIAM STIDNYIIHOSIT ANY L804I 18NW ¥OLOVE INOD IHL
Py (W 06-02) Z-P/E NOLS HyINONY 'AIHSNYD ‘N30 ¥ 39 LSNW SHIBWYHD SNIONNCHHNES SNOLS ININGIENS
v'SMOY ¥38WYHD THL N3IMLIE INIOVAS (W 0318 = MIIWININ NP INPW
Cv INOLS DNIDVTd QL BOIRd J3AVIAS ATHIJ0Nd 38 TIYHS SU3ONYHD NIIMETE SINIOD
My SHIENYHD DNIZYTd OL HOINd J3LIYdWOD ONY TF13AT1 38 TIVHS INOLS NOUYONNOS SHE
M HOLYAYIXE 80 ACH W0O0G SNOTY DNISN NOLYAYDXE JHL QSN0 WOM Tildova »
TOVHOENS B0 INOLS NOLLYONNOS SHL NO HOIYAYIXT NY DNISH 1IN THY SMOY SV TTISHIvE =
039 YIGWYHD THL 440 T 10T HI100HSTNGIS «
SOOHITN THAMOVE £ SONWNODIY HI3LHYEOLS
M SU3ENYHD FHL H3AC J3LVNLS HOLYAYRE NY 30 33200 ¥ HUM 0T THEX35YE 38 0L LON 34V SHIARYHD e
Mn.AQNS
NOLLINYLSNOD 08L-DS/0PL-DS/CHE-DS HOZLWHO LS, SHL HUM SONYOHOOOY NI JITTVASN] 38 TIVHS SYZEWYHD 0R4-05 7 01805 HOIIWHOLS z
My SAITIVLSNI AHL HLIAM SNLIT3M NOLLONE1ISNOITHd
¥ 03131800 SYH SALLY LNISANAIY SHIFANLOVINNYI IHL TLNA B3 TTELSNI 38 LON TIVHS S33gWYHD 0r£-08 7 0LE-D5 HOZINYOLS b

o

o

WALSAS 0PL-0%/04E-08 FHL 0 NOLLY TIVLSNI ONY ONIQGIE AHL 204 SILON -~ EINVLAOJN]

"ONISAv SR

'ALMIDYE ONIINLOYANNYIN GRHILETD LODE OS] NY 17 J32N00Hd 38 TIYHS Sdvd ONI ONY SHIaNYHD 2
‘0ASYE S1 NOLLYN YA TYENLONYLS IHL HOIHM NQ 1I¥130 NOILI3S 82040 TWanLonydls 2

“FONYAHOSYTS MHT1-ONOT AJH3A OL

NOLYTTEAD TYHNLONYLS OLHSYY IHL 4O 1¥Yd 8% 033N 38 1SN ZZ62d MASY 80 8kZd NISY NI 031510348 Yivad Snnaon

d3ZH0 YW3A 05 IHL 13N FUY THTE NOLLDIS "SNGCHLYDISID34S NOISSO 300I8T O34 OIHEYY JHL Nt J3(210348 SHOLOYd
O¥0TIHL LYHL STLVHLISNONIQ LYHL dITNIONZ TYNOISSII0Ed J36ILSIOFH ¥ A9 0T VIS NOLLYN VAT TWHNISNHLS ¥ q

2did JLSYISOWHZHL MO QLHSYY AT ONY 1842d
WLSY A8 OFHNDIY MMTAWINIK IHL 'O¥0T AN 8oL §L'L Oy VDT AY30 S04 SE°L OL TwND3 B0 NYHLE H3LYIUD 34V SHOLIYS
AL34¥S ZHL LvH1 S3LVHISNOWIA [vH1 ¥33NISNT TYNOISSEJ0ud JAEILSIHTY ¥ A8 GITYIS NOLLYNTYAS TVaNLINELS ¥ B

ALS L03rcHd
IHL 01 SYIFWYHD ONIMIAIIC FUO-TE WAOHIDY B0 ¥3INIDNT NDIS3Q 3Ls IHL OL 1$3NDIE NQN ONMOTICL IHL Jans
TIWHS HIUNLOYANNYH Y3EWYHD JHL "GIMOTIVY 38 TUM 3T3NIDNS NDiS3A 2 LS IHL AG GIACHDDY Fuv LML SEIENYHD ATND L

LSYIEWYHD NOLOTTIOD H3IVAMNEOLS TTYAM OF1LVINYE0D DILSYIJCNEIHL S0 N2IS3S Tvdnlonyls 304

SOILOVHL OYVANY LS. 2823 WLSY HLUM IDNVIYQIY NI JININY3 130 SAVOT TEYAMOTTY ONY QaNOIS3T 38 TIWHS SHITWVYHD g
Fv SHIENVHD NOILOTITION H3LYMAEO LS TTYM J3LvONEE0D DILSYIdOMEIHL

MO NCLLYDIID3dS OUYONYLS. (SNITAJCUIATOC! 8172 WLSY B0 (BNIVAHLEAT0L) 22624 WLSY 133N TIVHS Su3aNYHS s

"SIINAST L TTHHIA TGN ANY LDVINT BOS

NOLLYHIQISNGS HAIM HONRL NSIS3Q CLHSYY SHL NO dSSYE 'SO%0T SAM NOILYENG-LHOHS {7 ANY SGY0T QY30 NOLLYHN0-DNDT

(1 2404 130 3V ZLTL NOLLDTS "SNOILYOIEI03dS NDIS3T 390IME 04 OLHSYY JHL NI (351038 SHOLOYS JYCT] 3HL LvHL
JSNA TIYHS S INTWIHINDIY NOLLYTIVLSNE SHL ANV "TIHXIVE TWHNLINYLS SHL SHIFWVYHD ZHL 30 NOIS3T TYaNLInRiLs JHl i

“"MOILISdSNI 80 SS300Y LI 40 MO 303dWE N0
LYHL STINVS LHOddNS TeNESLNT ON HLUAM 30vdS YNNI GILINYLSHONM "SNONNLLNOD JQIACH TTYHS SMOY H38NYHD
MSNISTY SNTIAHLIATOL ¥O INT AJOHAA 10 NISHIA WOMS OSUNLIVANNY A 38 TTYHS SH38WYHD K4

o3

“TYN03 Q3A0UdY HO 0LE-DS OF£08 HOZLWHOLS 39 TTVHS SuENVHD R

SNOLLYDIZi0adS ¥3dNVHD HOSLNYOLS

1A ‘uopueig
Nied Aeulwag

"ONI 'SWALSAS F9VNIVHA JIINVAQY




g 40 ¢

133Hs

LIS 3H), 40 ALY

1M1 BHNSHI O1

T

SYIt BRIAEHA SIHL

AVOS OL LON

NI ND

BHL

D10 ELLTAS SOVNIVED TNV

SIFLBELOOB L
SZOEY HO "QMWITIH
QANE NYR3NAL Obek

!’

ELMAKNIYINTIY LO3rOUd OHY 'SHOLIWINSSH ST 31¥D1144Y TV 1330 51130

OB OR4e YIHLO VO HITHIDH HOISad 315 KL

SLE EHL

2503 | 301 THH ANOOH | 010 "OVOH DOORN BL
HE) MG A

Loallluols
e

MHO iAda] A3

RN ARLSE L HOLLOANASHOT0.L UDIEd ONWYHA SR1L MSIASY TIVHS

NCILdIHOS3g

1081, 3 103rCud|

3lYq)

== {JEMO3HD

o

NMVHA | 2L0TOZIE0
1A ‘uopuelg
yied Meuwag

SMOY

LI ¥3EWYHD TV 1¥ NOILD310Yd 9nods
HO4 [F55 JTINYHO HLYINSIONN ONY 3NOLS
SNIITEE HIA0 SNLXILOTD NIAOM HIMGLE

SDLEBHLINASDID SOV 20 .58 WNNINIA 30Y1d

{SoNvaIne

ONIZIS TIOAINYIN HOo J# LFAHS HO3L 338

# ¥3TNIONT A 061 321S) 36V YISWVHD 3A0EY
LOEZLANI'GIOLINVIN JOL ZL-N £aY 2L X .21

e,
o Ies ¢

o

\N

MOH YOI 108t
SAOY BOINVIOS! ONY SNOILLOINNCD
wbT OPL-08 TV O JAL SPEIL30PLDS
#1¥Yd J¥'D ON3 Q3 LVOHEYdIdEd 42

1 B
8 R
T
N\\\\ — 1

o
\\ ey

LHOd NOILOIdSMI

ELFG

£Z°00%

(SwaHLO
AD TAAIAOYC / HFINIONT AE NOISTA) TTOHINYI
SSVAAE T3LVATIIM SUNLONELS 035008

NOILOMELSNOD HO4 1ON - LNOAVYT TVNLJIONOD J3aLVEHINID 431NdWNGCO

14 752 “WILSAS 30 ¥ 1TWIMZEd
eld L6¥C ASLSAS 40 vINY
43 08%p “JWNTOA WALSAS QATIVLSNI
GIOA SNCLS %0 BNOLS 38VE . § 'INOLS ¥3A0D . § HLIM OITTVLSN
SdvD AN OFL95 HORLINECLS [ot}
SHSGNYHD Or£05 HOZLWHOLS {9)

LNOAVYT IVINLdaONOD




g 40 €

133HS

14HI ZHNSNE O1

T

THL 0 AL TEISHOT Y

HI HS0MN 5OV GLASTIACA NOUYPROHH| MO 035Y OSUYdTHd N3G SVH SN vala SIHL

SLNIWIKINDA L03roua ANy "SNOIY INDBY 'SMY 1 STEYDITdoy T 133/ BTVI30

MTYADY TIWHS HIINIGNE MNOISHD BB BHL SAN

HOIST0 HLK FML

M TATLISA BOVHIVI B32MVASY

ELPLEELV0RL o

BEOEP BO 'QHYITIH
aA78 NYWINML 0P0F

JEETSORPRETY

Yo

fuwn L s

5z

§

E

&

2

-1

1

188

B

FER]

13C]
el
m
<
g
g
[}
Xz
A
=)
m
[3
0
@
o
=
[=)
=z

glm

=

[}

a

*

- |

mm w ¥

|8 3

.Lm..w

THEE

A e

HE S

o3 =

i3

NOUIMDSI0 SHATNIDNT NDISI0 S IHL 1Y .0, 30 .0, 3341 S0 SINGHIHINOTY
TN LYW BHL S0VIdEN 0L 038N 38 MY 81108 SSYEINS LINSWIAVY LSON "ZavEe O3HSIN IHL 0L &N Q. 834V N A20V1d 38 NvD TWINELYAMIOS ANY 'G30V1d $1.2, M4 IING

BTIVA NOLLYAYDXT 03<0TS ONY TYIILY3A KLOS H0d TTVM NOLYAYIXE 2HL 0L ATTVINCZINOH QBANZE 28 LSNW INOLS ¥313WH3d

v SNOLLIANOD SHOLSION 1I0S O3L33dX3 50 IONYH SHL 204 NOLLYH3AISNOD HLIM

INOLS NOILYONNCH 0 HIA30 THL ONY §T1108 JAVASENS SHL 40 (ALIDY YD DONRIYEE STEvACTTv) SONYLSISZH ONIHYIE SHLONISSISSY H04 TAISNOSSEY §1 HIINIOND NDISTQ 3LS FHL

Py’ LOAMOUE SIHL HOd SUBBNYHD HOSLWEOLS 3HL 40 LNOAYT AN NDIS30 3HL 104 STRISNCdSTY YSaNIDNT IHL OL SU3S9H LHIINIONT ND2IST0 2118, IHL

T STYIR3 YN

TH4 ONY " LNIWA3EW3 'NOLLYONNCS ¥04 SINSWIHINDEY NOILOVEWOD ONY 'SNOLLYawHS 'SNOILJINOSIT SNOLLYD DT WiNILYW S3TACH SACHY T1EV.L.STWINILYW T4 S18v.L4300v.

T SHITNYHD

NOLITTIOS M3 LYMAMOLS TV 03LVONHNO0D SLLSVIdONNIHL 40 NSIS3Q TYUNLoNYLS 8O BOIL0YEd QUYONY LS. 8224 WLSY HLIM IONYSHODTY NI 0INDISZT 38 TTvHS SHISWYHD 0vL-08
v, SUINVHD NOILOZ 1100 HUYMINEOLS TTeM 03LYONUHOD (3d) INSTAHLIA10d HOS NOLLYIIHIO3dS QUYANY LS, 22624 WLSY MO

L SYSANYHD NOILOTTIOD HILYAMNEOLS TivA TALYSNEH0D (dd) INTIACOEIANIO HOS NOLLYD 10348 QUYONYLS, 8LFZd WLSY 40 SINIWNIHINDIY 2HL OL WNOINCD TIVHE SEEWYHD 0408

‘S31ON

{5 340N 338)
$7I0$ IqvHDENS

dvD AN
0pL-08

NIN (W 021 e

{nw SezL) LG

AL (i 008) 2L
NIt {ww 081,38 MFENIONT NOISSa A

Q3NIWY3130 39 QL SNCLS 40 HLd33d

{ww ggs)
08 (WDILNTA ¥O 0340TS 36 NyD)
| w TIVA NOILYAYDXS
on J NI (Wl 051) .8
o T T S

nE VNV Z—E er Dgu famls ) P2 O3 HIADD DSV Am 2UON ﬁ
. Al FFUHEIA WOUS SRIULLNY B = 338

& 1 o4 A a INOLS HALIWMEL

{¥A3NIONT NDIS3A LIS A9 I\ 4‘

CEN9IISI0) ¥3AYT LNINIAY SNIAYT 87 Y NI SNOLS v INONY UFHSNYD Ny 10 ANNoYY
TV SULKBLOID NIACM-NON LL09 SHIIHINASOID SAY

SINIWIHINDIN NOLLIVENOD HO3 HOZLWHOLS LOVINGD "SNOIS3J Ov0T VISSHS 404 INaWdIND3
NOILOYANOD LNOHEAM SNIDSYHO 80 SNINYE A8 GIAIIHOY 38 AV JOVFNS 1V ¥ 'SNOILIAGNCT OY0T NSISZa QHVANYLS HOd ‘NOILOVIWNOD AB J3SINCHIN0D 38 AV S30VEMNS NOUYMLTZNI 353HM €
HOLOYAADD AYOLYHEIA ¥ HUM S3DVHEADD TIN QAL ONIST 51417 Xy} (W ngL) 9 NI Q219vdmOD ANy G391« NIHM STYRYILYIN NOLLYSCOT .V, ¥0- 130 33V SINSWIHIN0IE NOILOVANOD HOTLNYOLS T
WINOLS (€PN OLHSYY) ¥ "ON BV INSONY

"OSHSNED 'NYS10. 51VAS TINOM INOILS 3 HO- NOLLYDIIHDAdS ¥ S TdWYXE 804 My INsNyY '0IHSNHD 'NE3TI 38 G5 LSNW INCLS THL "ATNC SNOILYAVHD HOd v SNOILYNDIEID OLHSYY QILSTIIHL 'L
TLON ISVId
e e e “HFBWYHD THL 40
=2 TOVING 1998 'S L9b ¥ LSE T (s 05-0Z) HON| Z/€ NISAMIIE NOLLNSNISI (
; ; WOLLOS} L00S THL OL drt JAVESENS SHL Wodd| v
1974 ¥ 3ASIHOY OL TI0d HO LOVan0D J1vd BN OLHSYY 3ZI8 WNINON FNOLS ¥y INDNY 'GIHSNHES NYIT1D SHIAWYHO MOTIE Tl ZNOLS NOLLYGNNO
ot B e e e ! "SAQEY 4FAYT,2, IHL OL (4341
‘OBYINGEY NOLLOVAROD ON L o Tt E &M%«Nwﬂhwzrwﬁﬁm\wﬁm%wmmmmwmm%wm«m._u ) INDLS NOILVANAOS SHL WOYS SHIBWVYHO| &
? Tr1L SMONNOHENS TI ANOLS INIWTIENT
N 68) Bn_ oon_nwm g330)3 CLLON IJH0d oL's
OINYNAC {N £5) 501 000 TL OTTITOLION | v 1ot e pr s e et ron e+ reu o
LHOEM TOIHIA SSCND JFTION ‘STayzivw | 50 8 84489 mwsmowm 9 519 ¥ USEE “¥IAVT SIHLHO “H3AYT.0,3HL 40 LV ¥ 38 AV ISvasns
31yOTUODY 03553005 YO ALISNEA o HEYY 37 NI 350 38 NvD SHVIMIEVIV SSVEENS INSWIAVS LSON | INSWIAY LYHL ALON 238HVHI SHL 50 doL
SALYTEY %55 GNY TYiaE Lyi J30vHD Tiam w0 3HL IA0EY (W 05k} gt 0L {EAvT @l anols| o
$04 ALISNIC HOLO0Hd %e6 NIW Y OL §1-1 “B1¥DIBOY AISETO0N HO SN INIWGSANE SHL 40 dol THI NONS SINVIS
XV (WK 051),9 Ni SHIAYTTNGILIGAY LOVaNoD e Ly %5e> ‘STUNIXIN 3LYOIHODVIIOS GSaYNOTTAM B TINYHE '3, M3AYT HOd TYINILYR T2 71 VLN
“OSHOYIY St SHIEWYHD IHL §IA0 TINALYW SPLI OLHEYY
20 fww goe) .z HILIY SNOILLIVINOD NIS38
HSAV G, SHL 30 Lava 99 AT
SINIWIHINDZH NOILYHYd38d ONY TridI Ly "SININIHNDIY 3qvdoans JSYIENS INFWANYY FYHL Z2LON "BA0HY IaVHD
INTZONIHLS SAVH AV SNOILYTT7ISN] 0AVd ¥IN INSWIAVA HOd SN HOZHD SNV Id SASANIDNT QIHSINIG OZAVANN NC INGRSAVE TTabE 0| o
BNy 1< SHTFINONE NDISIT 3HI$ dTd TVdTid ¥3d HO 'THOS IALLYN ‘S TYIRE LYW XGONII0S ANY WOLLOE IHL 0L ¥EAYT ., IHL 40 SOL IHL Wou
SIAVLS Q, ¥SAY 3O WRELVI Tl Tl TvNLd
I EERIReED] SNOLLVOIJISSY 10 NOLLJIOS3a NOLLYOO0T VI3 LYIN
ALISNIQ / NOLLOYdWOD TVIH3LYN QLHSVY

SINILSAS YIFGVHD 07.2-08 HOILINYOLS ‘STVIMILVIN 7111d 319VLdIIDV

z

3




§ 40 ¥

13THS

3HI I¥HL FUNSHA O] UIINIOHNI NOIZID 35 FHL 20 AL IBLEHOdS Y|

ICALZ3HI BH1 HIONIN ¥ O.L D3GIADA NOILIYWHOING N 035y GHEVosbc HE29 SVH BRMYND BHL

TIV GNY 03100630

“BLNSWENINDIN LI 0K ONY "SHOLLWINO3A "BMWY 31AVINdy TI¥ 133N SUVII0
#3431 TIVHE BIINDNI NBISID 3115 SHL JAILYIIFISHNAEN 1O3M0N ¥IHLO HO HEENI ShE HRIE30 A8 JHL 40 N

L 4O

BTN TN AV

ELPI-EEL008) o
SZOEY HO 'ONVITEH
aATa NYW3NH L oFSY

HUTTRIENTEE

Bz
g3
i3
1
umw
N
i
13
;i0
mMu.
TR
a0
m
<
g
=
[«]
I
S
=]
m
[}
[+3
=
%
=}
=
N =]
A
T
0
g
#*
= |2
ERES )
o|lm a
gldg 3
J.W.w
25|32 2
mle ]
HHEE
u =

o

BiN

VLA L¥0d NOLLD3dSNI 9 0FL-0%

NIBWYHD 0vL-08
LEIHD NOILYENKEOD NG
GSWAINTD 38 01 331 Y183SNI
dib2ISTINSO#LEY
331 VLHISM W 051),.8
Ddld J4aH 3L¥HO N3O 0 387 HLIM

Zih SOy (ww gel).e |/

S9066Z) TLVHD

000662 WIADD ANOos
NBCDvZHIZ #£1uvd

ALYES YO ¥3A0D

OIONIH QITOS/A AQ0T NIYEQ
INCTNE LSV IOTAN (Wi 00g) 28 —E

m.ZQh«.Oju&<ﬂN><uZD&O& n\
GIUNDIY LON HvTI0D ALIHONOD

r

f

KAANZLZO #Luvd
" H HOWYD WHO1SXT1S

SSINHOIHL NI (W 002) 8

89718 TLIHONCT

/I AN3WaAYd

HLQIA N (s asp) .86 HYTIOD S1IHONOD

SWYIS LNOHLIM D17 SNONNILNGD 3aIM NI (W s'L) 5
SHITWYHD CNY INOLS NOLLYONNOS NIIMIIE 31110E1030

NIAOR MIMSLE SHITHINASOID SOV 30 SHIAY 1 OML I/

"AYVYSSIOIN SI IONYNILNIVIN LvHL SMOHS NOLLDIISN NIHM HO ATTRTINNY ONIHOLIVA ONY ONILLIM L2NINSD 2

v SNOLIVAT T "3 1A HDIH ONV NCLLYTNIWNDOY LNIWIOSS S0 SNOILYANISEQ

$NOIANTHd NO 03S¥E TAYILNI NOILOTLSNI IHL 1SNPaY NOLEVHIHO S0 HV3A LSuid IHL ONRENG SHINOW 8 AN3AT LO34SNl )

WILSAS HO3,

S3LON

LINOLS SHL 40 WyIH1Sdn STTOHNYIN GNY SNISVE NYST0 ONY L284sN1 (P <318

"SNOLLOY ONY SNOILYAYSSE0 ON00TY SO ONY 'SH3LN "SSLvHE 'SHIA0D TV 30V 1d3Y (64318

(3HNDIY 8¢ dWNS FHNLONELS WNNIYA D

NYZ10 81 82LWAA HSMISHOYE TLNM JYALIN J0 §388Vd TN AlddY 9
Q3483438 S FHOW YO W 171 J5F 20 JYIdS DNIOVL Y3y HUM TTEZON BNINYITD IN3AN0 a3y v

SE300¥d DY¥ALI" IHL DNIST AMON HOLVIOR! LNONYT1S ([8d3ls

S 4218 0L 30U 'LON S 'Z 4315 0L 035000 (ww g8) £ ‘JACEY HO 'L¥ S| INIWIO3S Sl e8

TIOHNYH SNEAIND ) AULNZ 30vdS

O3NIENDT 304 SNOILLYINDTY YHSE MOT103 {IMAYLNT 30VIS JINIANGD ¥ AIOAY OL O3S0 38 AV SYHINYD
U0 BI04 NO SHONMIN  UiNy3did 15UN0 HONOEHL MOY HOLYI0SI 3HL NMOG LOZdSNI IHDTHSY 14 Y ENISN 28
MOY HOLV 021 4C ONT WYIXESN Ly IHNLIOMLS WOMS ¥3A0D IACHIE 18

'€ d318 QU J7300Ed

SMOH HOLYI0SI TIY '8

"LON dl 'Z J3L8 OL 033008 {ww 08) £ 'JACEY ¥O '1¥ §1 INSWICIS 31 g7

(TWNOLLAC) $12AT1 INSWITES S0 NOILO3dSN TWNSIA 804 MOY HOLYIOSE QLN viFEWvo ¥ ¥3M0T Y
DO IINYNI LN NG AXOSTH ANY LNSWIG3S 50 HL-S30 SHNSYSW ‘008 YIOV1S ONY [HDIHEY 14 ¥ BNISN BV

SIN

TVI3A MOH HOLVI0SI 07405

FFEIdH0RLDS # 1Hvd
Y3 ONI J3LYHav-Fid AHO DY 38N
QYINDZY Sdid SSIIIY 340H (ww gog} vz

O TIVLSN) 5l 830714 WHOLEXTH NYII0 ANV SACKIY TV
NIYHa SNIINI LSYTJOTAN NO QT NSJOBACKIY LY
(INISTHd 41 SL80d NOILDIIENl ¥
LNIWIJ3S ¥O4 MOK HO1Y0S] E034SN (L J31S

IONVNILNIVIN ¥ NOILD3dSNI

LHOd NOLLOBASNI TWNOLLLQ

¥3GWYHD BFL0S

ﬁ !

L {a3aN3WACDT NIW [wen 0ge] .#2)
HITNIDOND NOISET 38
A8 Q8L HLd3d sking

f

NISVE HOLVD

$ILVHD N3O HLIM S38NLONULS
PYIH 1SN ANY NI SLEESN] dund W80 LeX310d
SANIWHODIE ATHDIH HIFLWHEOLS

IGIM NI W+ TR
TIILXELOID NIACWNON 1109 S2ILSHINASQED
SOY HLM MOY HOLYIOS| JILNT ¥3A00




3H1 VAL SETENE O3, BIIHIONT MOI23G IS 3H 40 ALNISHOuSIY)

TIV OMv a3,

BLNINIEMOIY 103MGHd ONY 'SHOMLY DY 'SMYT SV 11 L33H 9

g dO ¢ TUNINON el SNOISNARIO T 310N
L33HS “19AT SLIS SNLLLIA 3HL LvHL 08 BNLS ZL-N 3L MOT38 WONS GIAOWSY 38 GTNOHS TrIELYH TISMoYa
El i ) 521 ATELVINIXOUDdY v NS SHL SO WO LLOR SHL MOS8 $311 B8NS (1w 009) ¥z IHL S¥ZA-T0rLIS 3HL 04 «
@
3 H ) “pEST-TEeBE L
H g Ly HOZLWHOLS LOVINOD NOLLYANON TYNOLIAGY ¥04 "dvd AN 3KL 40 WOLLCA IHL HLIM HENTd $1 8NLS IHL
s m =0 HA1AWYIO IAIS1ING 3HL 1YHL HONS d¥D ONT 40 WOLI0E 1Y 020v 1d 3av 8rc3d30¥ATS 2HL HO4 LaA0XT 'sanls TV
i {wwiE) LD bl {ww g/p) 5B {wwi pos).bT -8FZ3430pL08
BE] (wuw 1p) 97} — P i 0gp) Gt DdE813d30rL0S [ 88134307208
4 - (ww sz1) 08 “ a Ddigt3d30vL08 / 18I IJT0VL08
oA (uns g8 £ — (ww 2960 p'gL w526 1 0d85L3d30rL08 8513430808
TIa - (W 622) J0°6 - - 3dLEL3d30PL0S [ 1SHE80PL08
8FE3 {ww o8] .Z ¢ — e oo | moog gy | OSE0IIdH0K05 ] BELEAAOREDS
a%d = (wwgtel 520 ! i DdIZL3J30r208 / 1213430908
Lo w540 = iz over e | tomosz o | 29S0L0ER0LIS T €0V IaT0r s
SF M — [ - i 010134307208 1 10V 3d30pL08
z 5o {wwel) .80 = (ww o1}z z (e 00z .2 0d8205430¢£0S / 88034307203
E] 2L - (w G1p) 581 ! h Ocl L0307 08/ 1803430, 08
g v (wwel) 60 - (ww 122) oL (W geL) .8 2JBFOIIOFLDS 7 86034300408
E - {ww o2t e84 ’ 0d1903d30rZ08 / La03d30rL08
g
fls s 2 g v anls # Ldvd
WL, HLIW ONIONS SUESNNN Lifvd N0 dvD ONI 40 01 1Y §ar11s
o 8. HLIM DNIGNS SHIBWNN Livd HOd dvD ON3 40 WOLLOE 1V SENLS
H
i T ;
3
= w .*l
e
MEER:
HEERS {; << N
m 3 i _cl v l_ v SHIEWYHD NB3MLIE ANY ‘MOS8 ‘SA0EY SNOLS (Wt 261} .0 STNNSEY.
g
2|2 m m u- (51 96g) =06 LHDI3M
o|g 8 ® few 2172} 1334 DI9NT E¥L FOVHOLE GITTYISN WNMINGA
W {swpet) 1934 BN S FEVHOLS H3IEFWYHS
8 (W 6YLZ X W ZD) X WW GETL) 'S0 X 00 X.0'LS (HIONTT GITIVLSNI X H X M) T8
2 2 SNOLLYIHIDAAS HIBNYHI TVNINDN
g 2
g
g
T = {ww ggzL) § (ww gie)
i £ _|| s _|I (uxw g9LL} 55F I|_ ||_ _|. oy
B
g o
7 2 i
] ra
H
H
=
]
H
i 3 NOILYSMHHOD LSTHD 4IEWVHI ¥ NO
H [+] QFHEUNSO NOILOSNNOD 331 VIYISNI 350 {WW 052} 0L
1 z QL gn (W god) .p NYHL ¥39HY] S3ZIS 3dld YO "LM¥0d
H NOILOTLENI HOd Sdid OAd (¥ HOS (W 00L) i S14300Y
[
H (NOLLY2NEE00 TIVHS ¥3A0)
AR Fu3H HIAWVHD DEN dvTdaA0
i
Zla
HE QNT LYVIS
I
Ela|e
HES S|l
3 R m
S 28 2
C{ I R -
m Qe um =2 NOLLOSNIQ STHL NI mod ging == h
I| M| 2 =]
51513 M o HLENT OFTIVASNI (Wit 69121 068 I HLONTT TWILOV U2 bogz) .£08 ——|
HEI
iz
(]
# SIN
< -
H NOILYDId1D3dS TVOINHDAL 0vL-0%
£
H

NG FLINA YO 0060 "WHOLS JdH ZIFN 'TI13M LN3AT0S 2 F1THSYD “NOLLYWUOIN mE.Ouz Y03 HOTLNBOLS JOVINGD
Bdl OF HOS 'SE H0S "9 HOS 304 T8 IIWAY SONILLIE 231 wEHISNI SIWRITLVI Sdid L3N] NO JISYE AYYA T SEIENNN 18vd
{w 90Z) 8 {ww o0e) Z1 00SK-ON 10N
(w054 .8 {wur 0ged .21 Q0SE-OM
(s oL (W ggz} oL 0800
{ww ggl) & {ww gsz) oL QrL0S
{ury 00 ¥ (WU O5L) 8 01E-08
(0 ¥3aWvHD 31 VLIHISN!
HIANYHD LOGS ¥3EWVYHD LSvd
30 3S¥E WONd IHDIFR | J0 ¥IIIWVIO XV
(Ll 051} .8 ANBLE LS FYLHBL0TD
"SNOILOINNDD L INI 3AIS 1¥ NOILOA10ud
—_— —— ANODS BOS INOLS DNIIZE F5A0 LIt
MIIA AT VY NOLLOAS 331~V L43SNI NO d3YIINGD) FTINELOZO

NOILYONHMOD ¥3A0
a3EIINID 'GITIVLSNI
28 01 33 FLUISNI

NEAOM GLE SOIULIHINASOID SAV 30V

NGILOINNGD
331 ¥L1H3SNI

(213 'SOH DA}
AMWA AV TRIRS LY
Tdlld IONVAZANGD

SAINIOr ¥38NYHD
1Y I3LYLETISNI
TIVASNI LON CQ

SLN

TvLl3a I3L YLIHISNE




s mareTa

¥
3

i

)

E

eiom i - ur s




LATE HOMESTEAD PENALTY

Shall the Select Board of the Town of Brandon penalize late homestead filers per 32 VSA § 5410
(g} for Tax Year Ending 6/30/20237

(g) If the property identified in a declaration under subsection (b} of this section is not the taxpayer's
homestead, or if the owner of a homestead fails to declare a homestead as required under this section,
the Commissioner shall notify the municipality, and the municipality shall issue a corrected tax bill that
may, as determined by the governing body of the municipality, include a penalty of up to three percent
of the education tax on the property. However, if the property incorrectly declared as a homestead is
located in a municipality that has a lower homestead tax rate than the nonresidential tax rate, or if an
undeclared homestead is located in a municipality that has a lower nonresidential tax rate than the
homestead tax rate, then the governing body of the municipality may include a penalty of up to eight
percent of the education tax liability on the property. If the Commissioner determines that the
declaration or failure to declare was with fraudulent intent, then the municipality shall assess the
taxpayer a penalty in an amount equal to 100 percent of the education tax on the property; plus any
interest and late-payment fee or commission which may be due. Any penalty imposed under this section
and any additional property tax interest and late-payment fee or commission shall be assessed and
collected by the municipality in the same manner as a property tax under chapter 133 of this title.
Notwithstanding section 4772 of this title, issuance of a corrected bill issued under this section does not
extend the time for payment of the original bill, nor relieve the taxpayer of any interest or penalties
associated with the original bill. If the corrected bill is fess than the original bill, and there are also no
unpaid current year taxes, interest or penalties and no past year delinquent taxes or penalties and
interest charges, any overpayment shall be reflected on the corrected tax bill and refunded to the
taxpayer. .

YES NO

Selectboard Members; Date:

Seth Hopkins

Tracy Wyman

Timothy Guiles

Brian Coolidge

Michael Markowski




:{eep) uo H(sampeuBs) pieog jo9jes AQ DoAY

HIENSYIHLAET1D @l Sovo Nvang (eweu pajuud) {amnieufis) j1siedaly

FUOUWILIBA ° NOGNYSG 4o Auo/umoj sy jo uonerado oy} jo uofrerliasoidad ajesmnase ue ae

aJieuuonsenb Juswissasse-yjas siyl uy pepinosd siemsue ayj jey} abpejmou A Jo 156q 8y} 0] Al499 | Mojaq Joubis e sy

X isaafojdws umoy o1 Asuow ueo] umo} ay} seo0q

HIANNSYIHL X dsiseq Ajyiuow e uo pajpueIRJ sasuejeq puni pue sjunodde yueq ady

SHOLIANY NMOL ON - /N $sSurulel] |BPUEUL PURIIE SI0JIPNE UMO] Pa1Rs]s 0g

X {pun} yaeo 10} sacuejeq SUILUNL JO suUWnjod ‘sa8ed aleiedas ulejulew noA og

NMOLAS TINMO NOLLYLS BIISNVYHL IHL SNITY ¥MFBWIN CYv0aLd3Tas X 4UMO] BUJ YIEM SS2UISHG Sa0op YIYym ssaulsng Aue uj uzmn_u_ukmn g noA 2y

X isiuawAed sanoadde oym fenpialpul SWIES 3Y] AQ USTLIM SYI2UD 3y

HIHNSYERL ANY YIAJTIHN00E X ¢3urdaspiooal uo sBulujely papusile NoA SAEH

X ésaanpaoosd pue sanijod asay3 Jo s91do2 BBy |20 UMO] Yaed S30(

X dsuolierado jersueny 104 sainpadold pue sayod UI11LM BABY UMO] 241 SS0g

DHNAN X £ Wa1sAs pazuaindwiod e Ul pauleIulew SpIadal [RIouBUL 34y

HOLITEIA SHHUOM O1T811d -SHVYIA YO X fjuawdinba 1o spuny umo] o asn PIZIOYINEUN 10 ‘Pay3l B U3a( JOA3 34341 SEH

MIHNSYIIL X . junoaoe umol Aue 1oy pasn uady Jand dwels sunjeudis e sey

X ¢lead jeasyy ay3 Supnp seunjeusis pazioyine Ul safueys Aue usaq aJay) aARH

HIMNSYIEL . X £IUNc22e Yare 01 peuciyodde Sjunolze uMmol Ul 3153491U] 5)

X SIUNOJJE LMO] B 01U] ST{UoW umol-ucu Aue pausodap noA aney

X £3UNno3e umao} e ueyl JSY1o 243YymALE SaIUOW UMO] palsodap noA aaey

ISEREEV ool X £SUONEIUGIDI JUB[ MIIADS 124NSEDI] BY] Uy JOY)O DUOIWOS S50

YIUNSYIYL X ¢SIseq JejnSal e Uo pajipuolal SJUaLUDLELS yueq 2y

dSAUjUIRS] [EIPUBU) PRPUIIIE SI9GWAW PIE0d 1I3]3s dnEH

301430 SYFHNSVIUL X | jumolayl orapew juawhed ysea Aue aoj 3di333) paisquinu e apiacid sAemie noA og

YN SNIH0 OHM LSSY NIWAY AZ daN3dJO X JPRAIDIAI SE I3INSEaS] Y} 03 AP PaIaAEp SIUSWalels Jueq pauadoun oay

X {sjunoroe jueq ||g 1oy pasn sy3ay3 pasagwnu-aid suy

21190430 HYF10 NMOL Tl SNIJO LSSV NiaY X ¢S)29Y1 ysodap pue |1ew ayi uado [ENpIAIPUI BUIes Y1 sa0(

X £ysed 0] jou pue sasied payireds 03 Ua1lum SABMIE SYIBLYI DIy

HIHASYIEL NMOL X dAuaucw saaueley JeBpa] PUE yueq J[IJU0IBI NOA 0g

HIANEVIUL LSSV HEUNSYIUL LSSV NINGY "H3dTTHH008 X JIENpPIAIpU BUo Aq paulejuEW AJTUBLINT SPIOJAJ JUNCIIE UMD} B 20y
woum Ag | mowy juog| opn| SIA

(PITZST § "V'S'A b2 Ul pRoualsal Jusuwnaog
SUMO] pue 3 — sotijedidiuniyj 103 1SIH38Y7 S[GAIUO0Y) [BISUBUL [BUISIUY




June 24, 2022
FY 21-22 YEAR END NOTES

GASB 54 defines Assigned Funds as amounts that are intended to be used by the Town
for specific purposes as authorized by the Selectboard. The Fund Balance Policy
explains this in further detail.

We are requesting the following funds to be Assigned:

Motions for Assigned Funds for Fiscal Year 2021-2022:

1. $ 30,000.00 ~ Police: Re-Assignment from FY 20-21- Travel & Expenses,
Clothing Allowances, Professional Development, Fuel

2. $5,262.00 — Police: K-9 Donations- excess fundraising revenue

3. $8,000 — Buildings & Grounds- Fuel

The following require no action by the Selectboard, this is for information only:

Restricted Funds that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by
constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legis!lation.

Our Restricted Funds are;
Records Preservation
Highway Funds-Budgeted/Unspent
Prepaid Expenses
Recreation Donations:

» Dog Park -donations

Hawk Hill -donations
Carnival ~donations
Brandon Ski Club Donation
Cheerleading -donation
Basketball — donations
Football -donations

EV Festival - donations



To: Select Board Members
From: Elaine S. Smith
Re: FY 2022/2023 Fuel Quotes

Date: June 22, 2022

A Request for Quotes for on-road diesel fuel and #2 heating fuel were sent to
three vendors. Champlain Valley Fuels in Middlebury was the only vendor to
- reply. Their quote is attached. Champlain Valley Fuels has been our supplier
for several years.

A Request for Quotes for propane was sent to three vendors. Fyles Brothers
Inc. in Orwell was the only vendor to reply. Their quote is attached. Fyles
Brothers has been our supplier for several years.



June 14, 2022
Town of Brandon

49 Center Street
Brandon, VT 05733

Champlain Valley Fuels wili provide to the Town of Brandon the following:
On Road Diesel Fue! @ Valero Rutland Rack + .15 + applicable tax (i.e., 6/14/22 Valero Rutland Rack
$4.849 + .15 = $4.999 + tax)
#2 Fuel Oil:
1. Valero Rutland Rack +.20 +.02 State Tax, {i.e., 6/14/22 Valero Rutland Rack $4.7425 + .20+ .02 =
$4.9625)

2. Valero Rutland Rack + .20 capped @ $4.55 + .02 State Tax
3. Fixed price of $4.35 + .02 State Tax

These prices are good from luly 1, 2022, through June 30", 2023.

Bill Heffernan,
President, Champlain Valley Fuels

185 Exchange Street  »  Middlebury, VI 05753 + 802-388-4975 o Fax: 802-382-9373



The Town of
BRANDON VERMONT
49 Center Street
Brandon, VT 05733
(802) 247-3635

REQUEST FOR QUOTES

Date: June 13, 2022
Description: On-Road Diesel Fuel and #2 Heating Fuel

The Town of Brandon is seeking Quotes for the supply and delivery of on-road diesel fuel and
#2 heating fuel for FY 2022/2023. Quoted prices shall be effective from July 1, 2022 through
June 30, 2023.

It is estimated that the Town of Brandon will require approximately 15,000 gallons of
on-road diesel fuel at the following locations:

Highway Garage, 356 Champlain Street
e 1,000 gallon tank
e 275 gallon tank

Wastewater Pump Station (back-up generator), 43 Champlain Street
e 133 gallon tank

It is estimated that the Town of Brandon will require approximately 6,000 gallons of #2
heating fuel at the following locations;

Highway Garage, 356 Champlain Street
® (3} 275 gallon tanks

Town Hall, 1 Conant Square
e 275 gallon tank

Please forward quotes to David J. Atherton, Town Manager at datherton @townofbrandon.com.
Quotes will only be accepted through Wednesday, June 22, 2022 at 9:30 a.m., and may not be
withdrawn for a period of 30 days after that date. The Town reserves the right to waive any
informalities, to accept or reject, in whole or in part any or all quotes, or take whatever other
action may be deemed to be in the best interest of the Town.



Tylé@rotrs Inc.

425 Needham Hill Rd.
Orwell, VT 05760
(802) 948-2300

PROPANE BID

For

Town of Brandon
49 Center St.
Brandon, VT 05733

In response to your “Request for Quotes” in which you are seeking a
quote to provide liquid propane for the Town of Brandon for the 2022-2023
fiscal year. Fyles Bros. Inc. of Orwell, VT hereby submits the following
“Fixed Price” per gallon Bid for the period beginning July 1, 2022 through
June 30, 2023. :

FIXED PRICE OFFER:
$1.94 per gallon

Thank you for the opportunity to bid on the Town of Brandon’s propane
needs. We hope to continue as your propane supplier.

Sincerely,

Manny Fletcher
Fyles Bros. Inc.



The Town of
BRANDON VERMONT
49 Center Street
Brandon, VT 05733
(802) 247-3635

REQUEST FOR QUOTES

Date: June 13, 2022
Description: Liquid Propane

The Town of Brandon is seeking Quotes to furnish liquid propane for FY 2022/2023. Quoted
prices shall be effective from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023.

It is estimated that the Town of Brandon will require approximately 13,000 gallons of
liguid propane for tanks and/or cylinders at the following locations:

Police Station, 301 Forest Dale Road
s 500 gallon tank

Town Hall, 1 Conant Square
e 500 gallon tank

Town Office, 49 Center Street
s (3) 120 gallon tanks

Wastewater Pump Station (back-up engine), 397 Newton Road
e 500 gallon tank

Wastewater Plant, 500 Union Street

¢ Generator Building - 1000 gallon tank
Lab Building - 1000 gallon tank
Chemical Building - (2) 100 gallon tanks
Main Garage - (2} 100 gallon tanks
Small Garage - {2) 100 gallon tanks
Supply Garage - (2) 100 gallon tanks

e & & »

Please forward quotes to David J. Atherton, Town Manager at datherton@townofbrandon.com.
Quotes will only be accepted through Wednesday, June 22, 2022 at 9:30 a.m., and may not be
withdrawn for a period of 30 days after that date. The Town reserves the right to waive any
informalities, to accept or reject, in whole or in part any or all quotes, or take whatever other
action may be deemed to be in the best interest of the Town.




Diesel Fuel and Heating Fuel quotes were mailed and emailed to the following
companies:

Champlain Valley Fuels tfisher@cvph.net
P.O. Box 723
Middlebury, VT 05753

Keyser Energy info@keyserenergy.com
Attn: Larry Bigelow

P.O. Box 400

Rutland, VT 05702

Mike’s Fuels mikesfuels@gmavt.net
P.O. Box 90

Bridport, VT 05734

Propane quotes were mailed and emailed to the following companies:

Fyles Brothers, Inc. fylesbrosine(@email.com
425 Needham Hill Road
Orwell, VT 05760

Keyser Energy info@kevserenergy.com
Attn: Larry Bigelow

P.O. Box 400

Rutland, VT 05702

Mike’s Fuels mikesfuels@gmavt.net
P.O.Box 90

Bridport, VT 05734

MALED | é/i%/;z;z
EmmiEb 6] 22

P,



06/24/22

TOWN OF BRANDON Accounts Payable

Check Warrant Repeort # 63558 Current Prior Next FY Invoices
All Inveoices For Check Acct 01{10 General Fund} 06/27/22 To 06/27/22

Involoce Descripticon

Invoige Number

Account

Amount

Paid

Pagae 1 of §

Jacolyn

Check
Date

10:52 am

Invoice
Vendor Date
311015 BEN'S UNIFORMS 06/08/22
310861 BIASUZZL, JEFFREY 08/21/22
100190 BLUE SEAL FEEDS 06/14/22
100285 BRANDOM FIRE DISTRICT #1. 06/21/22
100280 BRANDOM LUMBER & MILLWORK 06/10/22
100280 BRANDON LUMBER & MILLWORK 06/10/22
100280 BRANDON LUMBER & MILLWORE 06/13/22
100280 BRANDON LUMBER & MILLWORK 06/14/22
100280 ERANDON LUMBER & MILLWORK 06/16/22
200218 BRANDON REPORTER 05/31/22
200218 BRAMDON REPORTER 05131/22
200218 BRANMDON REPORTER c5/31/22
301085 BROWN, TYLER 06/10/22
100860 CARROLL, BOR, PELL & KITE 06/23/22

title insurance
100860 CARROLL, BOE, PELL & KITE 06/13/22
100860 CARRCLL, BOE, PELL & KITE 06/237/22
legal fees

100462 CASELLA WASTE MANAGEMENT 06/0L/22
301503 CEAMPLATN VALLEY FURLS 06/10/22
310703 CITY HALL SYSTEMS, INC. 05/31/22
310097 COMCAST 06/09/22
310037 COMSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIO 06/06/22
100456 DUBOIS & KIMG INC 06/13/22
300466 DUNDON PLUMBING & HEATING 06/08/22
300466 DUNDCN PLUMBING & HEATING 06/08/22

pants

103122

reimburse for postage
0g/21/22

pants

329-9387

Juna water portion
JUNE 2022
trash bags
938185/3
reflectors,
938281/3
elbew, coupler, adapter
938708/3

chlerine tablets
938907/3

trash bags

339182/3

DRB, taxes 4Q,2d WW asst.
5/31/22

DRB, taxes 4Q,Ad WW aast.
8/31/22

DRB, taxes 4Q,Ad WW asst.
5/31/22

beaver removal

06102022

389 Newton-FEMA buyout
06/23/22 .

tote

miscellansous legal
36412

38% Newton-FEMA buyout
6/23/22

trucking of May sludge
2702901

diesel fuel

694186

oo - May 2022

18520

service: 08/16 - 07/15
TH 06/09/22

service May 06 to Jun 05
PD 06/06/22

Union St pay request #3
627578

portable toilet fee
71554

portable toilat fee
71556

10-5-14-1.0320

Clothing Allowance
10-5-12-30132
Planning/Zoning Postage
10~5-15-10320

Clothing Allowance
90-5-15-90600

Paid To BFD Ko 1
10-5~22-43170

Trash cogts-Transfer Stat
10-5-14-30110

Office Supplies
20-5~55+43160

Maint. Supplies ~ General
10-5-22-43160

Parks Maint.
10-5-22-43170

Trash costs-Transfer Stat
20-5-~55~21110

Legal Services
10-5-12-30310

Lagal Advertising
10-5-10-30310

Legal Advertising
10-5-15-20240

Contractors

56-5-06~-20200

Wewton Rd Flood-Legal

10-5-10-21110
Legal Services
56-5-06-20200
Newton Rd Flood-Legal

20-5-55-50170

Trucking

10-5-15-41130

Fuel - Vehicles HW
10-5-18-30070

Little League Expenses
10-5-10-42100
Telephone Exp. Aduin.
10-5-14-42100

PD Telephone Sexvice
46-5-21-20120

Union Sidewalk Engineer
10-5-18-30070

Little League Expensas
10-5-18-43130
Estabrook

134,56

4.23

118,87

616098.59

33.98

33.98

260.00

45.50

52,00

276.00

805.75

473,00

2143.50

1980.00

2333.63

72.99

92,00

50.27

3857.94

135.00

1320.00

51116

5117

51118

51118

51118

51118

51118

51119

51119

51119

51120

51103

51121

51104

5l122

51123

51124

51125

Blize

51127

51128

51128

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/277/22

06/27/22

06/23/22

06/a27/22

06/23/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27 /22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

08/271/22



06/24/22
10:52 am

Vendor

300466

300466

101007

300187

101011

310603

100725

100725

100725

310233

310233

310233

310233

310233

310233

310233

310233

310233

310233

310233

310233

310233

310233

310233

310259

TCWN CEF' BRANDON Accounts Payable

Check Warrant Report # 6355B Current Prior Next FY Invoices

211 Invoices For Check Aact 01(10 General Fund) 06/27/22 To 06/27/22

DUNDON PLOMBING & HEATING

DUNDCN PLUMBING & HEATING

EARLE'S TRUCK REPAIR, INC

FLORENCE CRUSHED STCNE

FOLEY DISTRIBUTING, INC

FRANCOEUR, BEN

GREEN MOUNTAIN GARAGE

GREEN MOUNTAIN GARAGE

GREEN MOUMTAIN GARAGE

GREEN MCUNTAIN POWER

GREEN MCUNTAIN FPOWER

GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER

GREEN MOUNTAIN DOWER

GREEN MOUNIAIN POWER

GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER

GREEN MOUNEAIN POWER

GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER

GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER

GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER

GEREEN MOUNTAIN FOWER

GREENM MOUNTAIN POWER

GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER

GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER

GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER

KOFILE INC

Invoice

Date

06/08/22
06/13/22
06/06/22
06/11/22
06/16/22
06/22/22
06/14/22
06/15/22
06/17/22
06/02/22
06/06/22
06/03/22
06/03/22
C6/06/22
06/03/22
06/03/22
06/03/22
0&/02/22
08/06/22
06/03/22
06/02/22
06/03/22
06/03/22
06/06/22

06/22/22

Invoice Description Amount
Invoice Number Account Paid
portable toilet fee 10-5-18-60100 130,00
71556 Seminary Hill

Jjetted plugged force main 20-5-55-20240 902,580
71657 Contractors

hub cap for tmuck #6 10~5-15-41160 18.30
31972 HW Maint. Supplies-Vehicl

astone 10-5-15-46140 528.085
231791 Gravel

tissuae, papsar towels 10-5-22-43180 442.40
448328 Maint. Supplies Bldgs.

officiating 10-5-18-30070 55,00
06/22/22 Little League Expenses

oil filter 10-5-15-41160 3.39
184381 HW Maint. Supplies-Vehicl

oil 10~5-15-41160 17.70
184330 HW Maint. Supplies-Vehicl

lube 10-5-15-41160 8,982
184553 HW Maint. Supplies-Vehicl

7 Conant Sq - lighting 10-5-22-42130 31.78
06/22 047828 Bldgs & Grounds Electric

Newton Rd - pump station 20-5-55-42130 672,26
06/22 089202 Electric

Central Park, lights 10-5~22-42130 545.39
06/22 170028 Bldgs & Grounds Electric

Estabrook Park 10-5-22-42130 51.41
06/22 240302 Bldgs & Grounds Electric

WWTE 20-5-55-42130 285.28
08/22 260302 Electric

Carvar St - pump station 20-5-55-42130 45.66
Q6/22 290502 Electria

Green PRark 10-5-22-42130 21.97
06/22 317702 Bldgs & Grounds Electric

Country Club pump station 20-5-55-42130 27,74
06/22 338602 Electric

car chargers 10-5-22-42500 329.28
06/22 339840 Electric EV Car Stations

Town Hall 10-5-22-42130 67.04
06/22 451302 Bldgs & Grounds Electric

Brockdale pump station 20-5-55~-42130 26.78
06/22 467702 Elaectric

Crescent Park 10-5-22~-42130 150.90
06/22 737937 Bldgs & Grounds Electric

street lights 10-5-22-42130 2861.63
06/22 831302 Bldgs & Groumndds Electric

WWTP security light 20-5-55-42130 25.47
06/22 860302 Electric

Champlain 8t pump station 20-5-55-42130 388.84
06/22 BE7202 Electric

binder, rean paper 10-5-13-30123 367.76

INVKTOUO7118

Recards Preservation

Page 2 of 5§

51129

51130

51131

51132

51133

51133

51133

51134

51134

51134

E1134

51134

51134

51134

51134

51134

51134

51134

51134

51134

51134

51134

51136

Jacolyn

Check
Date

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

0g/21/22

08/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

0s/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22



06/24/22
10:52 am

Vendor

100029

300745

100588

100588

3106320

310630

310630

310630

310630

310630

310630

310630

310630

310630

310630

310630

310630

310620

310630

310630

310630

310630

310630

310630

310630

TOWN OF BRANDCN Accounts Payable

Check Warrant Report # 63558 Current Prior Next FY Invoices

All Invoices For Check Acct 01(10 General Fund) 06/27/22 To 06/27/22

LAWES AGRICULTURAL SERVIC

LEARY, JBMES

Invoice Inveoice Description

Date Invoice Number
06/14/22 conservation mix
27601
06/23/22 3B% Newton-FEMA buyout
6/23/22

lagal fees, cvernight packet

MARKOWSKI EXCAVATING,

INC

MARKOWSKI EXCAVATING, INC

MASTERCARD

MASTERCARD

MASTERCARD

MASTERCARD

MASTERCARD

MASTERCARD

MASTERCARD

MASTERCARD

MASTERCARD

MASTERCARD

MASTERCARD

MASTERCARD

MASTERCARD

MASTERCARD

MASTERCARD

MABTERCARD

MASTERCARD

MASTERCARD

MASTERCARD

MASTERCARD

MASTERCARD

06/14/22 gravel
V-23986
068/21/22 gravel
V-24020
COVID tests
44704
holster

44705

05/16/22
05/25/22
05/25/22 K9 supplies
44706
05/11/22 Historic 8ign-Park, final
44902-1

Wetland permit,WW Upgrade
44903

05/03/22
05/04/22 yearly zoom conf subscrib
44904

Sand blaster

44908

05/09/22
05/16/22 cert mailing-SB hearing
44904

1Pad & case

44907

05/05/22
05/11/22 headphones,batteries,case
44908

05/11/22 headphones,batteries,case
44908

05/11/22 headphonss,batteries,case
44908

05/11/22 headphones,batterias,case
44908

05/10/22 popcorn, bags
44909
flag, table
44910
flag, table
44810
flag, table
44910
flag, table
44310
flag, takle
44910
flag,takble
44910
flag,table

44910

05/18/22 cover , BB, T-bal

05/18/22 cover, BB, T-bal
05/18/22 cover, BB, T-bal
0E/18/22 cover, BB, T-bal
08/18/22 cover,BB, T-bal
0B/16/22 cover,BB, T-bal

08/18/22 cover, BB, T-bal

Amount.
Account Paid
10-5-15-44110 551.25
Ditching
56-5-06-20200 B827.50
Newton Rd Flood-Legal
10-5-15-46140 300,00
Gravel
10-5-15-46140 1875.00
Gravel
10-5~14-30120 95,98
Professional Supplies
10-5-14-30120 41.06
Professional Supplies
10-5-14-40440 108,54
Police Dog Expenses
10-5~15-45120 585.25
Signs & Posts
20-5-60-20500 758.75
Permits, Fee's, Testing
10-5-10-30130 349.80
Service Contracts
10-5-15-41110 129,99
New Equipment-Misa. Tools
10-5~10~30132 7.38
Postage Expenses
10-5-15-41110 354.28
New Equipment-Misc. Tools
10-5-15-41120 44.59
Safety Equipment:
10-5-22-43120 316.70
Municipal Mowing-maint
10-5-10-30110 6.98
Office Supplies
10-5-18-10310 19.99
Travel & Expenses
10-5-18-40120 90.61
Play Group/ Family Activi
10-5-18-30070 B7.38
Little League Expenses
10-5~18~-40050 95.00
Youth Basketball
10-5-10-30110 13.99
Qffice Supplies
10-5-18-20600 24.99
Equipment /Supplies
10-5-10-30110 12.67
Office Supplies
10-5-10-30110 13.59
Office Supplies
10-5-22-43150 224.91

Town Hall Repair/Maint,

Page 3 of §

51137

51137

51112

51112

B1ilz2

51112

51112

51112

51112

51112

E1112

51112

51112

51112

51112

51112

51112

51112

51112

51112

51112

51112

51112

Jacolyn

Check
Date

06/24/22

06/23/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/24/22

06/24/22

06/24/22

06/24a/22

06/24/22

06/24/22

06/24/22

06/24/22

06/24/22

06/z4/22

06/24/22

0s/24/22

06/24/22

06/24/22

06/24/22

06/24/22

06/24/22

06/24/22

06/24/22

06/24/22

06/24/22



06/24/22
10:52 am

Vendor

TOWN OF BRANDON Accounts Payable

Check Warrant Report # 63558 Current Prior Next FY Invoices

All Invoices For Check Acct 01 (10 General Fund) 06/27/22 To 06/27/22

310630

100949

310796

310785

310795

100374

301088

3107386

310736

2310736

310736

311106

311106

200055

310021

310953

200277

100900

100900

310534

330348

330348

330348

MASTERCARD

MITCHELL TEES & SIGNS, IN

NATTONAL BUSINESS LEASING

NATIONAL BUSINESS TECHNCL

NATIONAL BUSINESS TRECHNCL

NORLAB INC

PETE 'S TIRE BARNS,

INC

POCKETTE PEST CONTRCL

POCKETTE PEST CONTRCL

POCKETTE PEST CONTRCL

POCKETTE PEST CONTROL

ROCHOMN,

ROCHOM

SHERWIN

STEARNS

TCE INC

THUNDER

TOWN COF

TCWN OF

TRAYNOR,

VERTZON

VERIZON

VERIZON

RICHARD & RONE

Invoice

Date

05/16/22

04/10/22

06/17/22

06/21/22

06/21/22

Q4/12/22

06/13/22

06/17/22

06/17/22

06/17/22

06/17/22

06/23/22

Invoice Description

Invoice Number

uCce filing RLF-Delilah's
44911

gigns

30150 v
7/1/22 - 7/31/22
78695177

lease:

service contract printers

TN490786
service contract copiers
IN490787
tracing dye
86027

winter tires
014683

pest control:

18892

storage

pest control:
18894
pest contreol:

18895

Town Hal

pest control:
18898

389 Newton-FEMA buyout
QE/23/22

tax proration-nol. covered by Grant proceeds

RICHARD & RONE

net proceeds

WILLIAMS COMPANY

SERVICES LLC

TOWING & AUTO REC

BRANDCON

06/23/22

06/09/22

06/22/22

06/23/22

06/07/22

06/23/22

389 Newton-FEMA buyout
6/23/22

painting supplies
7044-0

consulting fee

1138

Arnold Dist culvert
39057

repairs

70253

389 Newton-FEMA buyout
06/23/22

recording and appraiszal fee reimbursement.

BRANDON

06/23/22

water/sewer payment

NATHAN J

WIRELESS

WIRELESS

WIRELESS

06/22/22

06/13/22

06/13/22

06/13/22

389 Newton-FEMA buyout
6/23/22

of ficiating

06/22/22

gervice May 14 - Jun 13
9508830263

service May 14 - Jun 13
95088302463

service May 14 - Jun 13
9808830263

Town Office

Police Dept

Account

37-5-10-21110

Legal Expenges
10-5-18-62000

DOG PARK EXPENDITURES
10-5-10-30130
Sarvice Contracts
10-5-10-30130
Service Contracts
10-5-10-30130
Service Contracts
20-5-55-51310
Collection Systems
10-5-14-41110

New Ecuipment - Vehicles
10~-5~18~20500

Storage Unit Supply/Maint

10-5-22-43100

Town Office
10-5-22-43150

Town Hall Repair/Maint,
10-5-22-43080

PD Bldg Maint.
56-5-06-20200

Newton Rd Flood-Legal

56-5-06-20200
Newton Rd Flood-legal

10-5-15-45130

Line Painting
10-5-10-30130

Service Contracts
56~5~10~30100

Arncld Dist Culvert
10-5-14-41180

PD Vehicle Maintenance
56-5-06-20200

Newton Rd Flood-Legal

56-5-06-20200
Newton Rd Flood-Legal

10-5-18-30070

Little League Expenses
20-5-55-42100
Wastewater Telephone
10-5-18-42100
Recreation Telephone
10-5-21-10310

Travel & Expensas

35.00

216,00

102.00

43,12

100.00

244.00

623.20

50.00

70.00

40,00

65.00

79.51

155715.86

136.07

360.00

2120.12

478,41

665,00

416.64

110.00

40.35

20.18

20.17

Page 4 of §

51139

51140

51140

51141

51142

51143

51143

51143

51143

51106

51107

51144

51145

51146

51147

51108

51109

51148

51149

51149

51149

Jacolyn

Check
Date

06/24/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

0g/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/23722

06/23/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22

os/21/22

06/23/22

06/23/22

06/27/22

0s/27/22

06/27/22

06/27/22



06/24/22
10:52 am

Vendor
330348
330348

330348

100019

100146

311001

301509

VERIZON WIRELESS

VERIZON WIRELESS

VERIZON WIRELESS

VERMONT DEPT OF TAXES

VLCT PACIF

WHEELER, MANDY

WHITE MULE COMPANY

Inveoice

Date

06/i3/22

06/13/22

06/13/22

06/23/22

06/22/22

06/20/22

06/20/22

Report Total

TOWN CF BRANDON Acccunts Payable
Check Warrant Report # 63558 Current Prior Next FY Invoices
All Invoicaes For Check Acct 01{(10 General Fund) 06/27/22 To 06/27/22

Inveice Description

Invocice Number

service May 14 - Jun 13
9908830263

service May 14 - Jun 13
5908830263

service May 14 - Jun 13
9908830263

389 Newton-FEMA buyout
6/23/22

Thomas claim deductible
20220565-202

Davenport flyer design
0170

pavement stencils

17682

To the Treasurer of TOWN CF BRANDON, We Hereby certify

that there is due to the several persons whose names are

listed herecon the sum against each name and that there

are good and sufficient vouchers supporting the payments

aggregating § ***258. 4

82,82

Tet this be your order for the payments of these amounts,

Amount

Account Paid
10-5-10-42100 40,35
Telephone Exp. Admin.
10~5-14~42100 40.35
PD Telephone Sexvicea
10-5-15-42100 40.35
HW Telephone
56-5-06-20200 4025.,00
Wewton Rd Flood-Legal
10-5-17-65000 1000.00
Insurance Deductible
10-5-18-50170 18.00
EV Festival Expenses
10-5-15-45130 2350.98
Line Painting

258482,92

Selectboard

Page 5 of &

Check
Nunmber

51149

51149

51110

51150

51151

51152

Jacolyn

Chack

Date

06/27/22

0g/z7/22

06/27/22

06/23/22

oB/2/22

06/27/22

06/27/22




